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Agenda of the Annual Ordinary 
General Assembly Meeting for 
the Fiscal Year Ended 31/12/2021 



Discussing the Board of Directors report for the financial year ended 31/12/2021 and approving the same.

Listening to both the Corporate Governance Report and the Audit Committee Report for the financial year ended 
31/12/2021 and approving the same.

Reciting the penalties (financial or non-financial) that were imposed by the regulatory authorities during the 
financial year ended 31/12/2021 (if any).

Listening to the report of the auditor Deloitte & Touche (Al Wazzan & Co.) for the financial year ended 
31/12/2021 and approving the same.

Discussing the annual financial statements for the financial year ended 31/12/2021.

Discussing deduction of 10% from net profit to the obligatory reserve, for a total amount of KD 1,093,415.

Discussing deduction of 1% from net profit to the voluntary reserve, for a total amount of KD 109,340.

Discussing the Board of Directors’ recommendation to distribute 5% cash dividends of the nominal value of the share, 
i.e. 5 fils per share for the financial year ended 31/12/2021 for the shareholders registered in the company’s records on 
the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Discussing the distribution of a remuneration to the members of the Board of Directors in the amount of 168,000 
dinars (only one hundred and sixty-eight thousand Kuwaiti dinars) for the fiscal year ending on 12/31/2021.

Authorizing the Board of Directors to buy or sell the Company's shares by not more than 10% of the number of shares 
in accordance with the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 and its Executive Regulations and their amendments.

Listening to a report on transactions with related parties during the financial year ended 31/12/2021 and authorizing 
the Board of Directors to deal with the related parties until the date of the next General Assembly for the financial year 
ended 31/12/22.

Approving discharging the members of the Board of Directors in respect of their financial, administrative and legal 
actions for the financial year ended 31/12/2021.

Discussing the allocation of an amount of KD 2,500 (Two Thousand Five Hundred Kuwaiti Dinars only) for the social 
responsibility for the fiscal year ended 31/12/2022 and the delegation of the Chief Executive Officer to determine the 
entity to be disbursed.

Approving appointment or re-appointment of Company's auditor within the list of accredited auditors of the Capital 
Market Authority - taking into consideration the period of mandatory change of auditor - for the financial year ending 
on 31/12/2022 and authorizing the Board of Directors to determine his fees.

Approving the appointment of a member of the Board of Directors to the board of directors membership of Kuwait 
Investment & approving the appointment of a member of the Board of Directors to the board of directors membership 
of Gulf Custody Company and to a position in The Kuwait Financial Centre Company pursuant to Article 197 of the 
Companies Law. 
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Chairman Message 

Dear Valued Shareholders, 

I am pleased to present to you, on behalf of my fellow Board Members, the annual report and financial statements of the 

company for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2021. 

During 2021, we witnessed the beginning of economic recovery, openness and societal coexistence with the pandemic due to the 
acceleration and expansion of vaccination campaigns locally and globally as well to health and preventive measures that 
contributed to the beginning of the return of normal life. The positive performance of most of the world market indices continued 
during 2021. At the local level, the liquidity of Kuwait Stock Exchange increased by 26.6% and its main index increases by 27%, and 
the positive economic growth estimated according to the expectations of the International Monetary Fund issued in October 2021 
returned to 0.9% and this is after its largest contraction in 2020, supported by the increase of Kuwaiti oil price from an average of 
41.5$ per barrel in 2020 to a rate of 74.9$ per barrel in December 2021. 

At the company level, the company achieved a net profit of 3.521 million Kuwaiti Dinars during the year 2021 compared to a loss of 
5.07 million Kuwaiti Dinars in 2020, with an increase of 169% due to the exceptional performance of the associate company in 
addition to the increased income of the company’s investments portfolio. The company’s assets also increased by 16% to reach 43.7 
million Kuwaiti Dinars and shareholder’s equity also increased to 34.4 million Kuwaiti Dinars by the end of the year. The 
company’s board of directors has recommended distributing dividend of 5% (5 fils per share) for the fiscal year ending on 
31/12/2021. 

The board of directors, in coordination with the Executive Management, has followed up the business, investment strategy and the 
company’s risk management policy during of the recovery of the economy, the business environment and the return to normal life. 
Locally, the company increased its interest stake in Al-Ahlia Insurance Company from 3.19% to 5%, in addition to exiting from 
some investments listed in Kuwait Stock Exchange as well as subscribing to bonds that recently issued by a leading insurance group 
in the State of Kuwait. The company also received proceeds from local bonds that matured in December 2021 issued by a major 
local group since 2016. As for following up of regional and international investments, thankfully, Sharjah real estate project has 
been completed and 100% of construction has been done, electricity, water and other services have been connected. The Executive 
Management has been keen to make field visits to the project site during the last quarter of the year in order to examine the project 
upon completion and extract the necessary documents, forms and official papers from Sharjah. It is expected that leasing will begin 
during the first quarter of 2022 due to the presence of several parties that expressed their desire to rent the project. Internationally, 
the company’s management is in the process of restructuring foreign investments by investing in the Gulf and American financial 
markets, targeting vital sectors and diversifying the financial assets that constitute the company’s investment portfolio to achieve the 
best possible investment returns. As for the associate company, the financial performance was exceptional and promising during the 
fiscal year ending in December 31, 2021. Kuwait Financial Center Company (MARKAZ) achieved a net profit for the parent 
company shareholders 14.987 million Kuwaiti Dinars compared to a loss of 1.715 million Kuwaiti Dinars in December 2020 with  a 
rate of an increase of 974%. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and on my own behalf, I would like to extend my sincere thanks and gratitude to H.H. Sheikh 
Nawaf Al-Ahmed Al-Jaber Al-Sabah the Amir of Kuwait, H.H. Sheikh Mishal Al-Ahmad Al-Sabah, the Crown Prince of Kuwait; 
H.H. Sheikh Sabah Al-Khaled Al-Sabah, the Prime Minister; and all the regulators, asking God, to safeguard them all and bless their 
continuous endeavors and support aimed at achieving prosperity and progress of our country’s economy at all levels. I would also 
like to extend my thanks to our valued shareholders for their confidence and continuous support to the company management. In 
addition, I extend my thanks to the company's staff for their efforts to achieve the business plans. 

Ghazi Al-Osaimi 
Chairman 
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Executive Management Report 

Dear Valued Shareholders, 

KPFI’s Management is pleased to present you the annual report and financial statements of the company for the fiscal 

year ending on 31 December 2021. 

Key Financial Highlights in 2021 

Statement 2021 2020 Percentage Change% 

Investments gains  4,798 (4,645) 203% 

Interests income 217 362 -40% 

Total assets 43,787 37,631 16% 

Total liabilities 9,314 6,315 47% 

Shareholders' equity 34,473 31,316 10% 

Retained earnings 4,524 1,643 175% 

Net profit 3,522 (5,071) 169% 

Earnings per share (fils) 11.7 (17) 169% 

Book value (fils) 115 104 11% 

 Figures in thousands 

Keys Events in 2021 

The company’s management sought to maintain the quality of the financial assets that constitute the company’s 

investment portfolio through reallocation and positioning the company’s investments as follows: 

- Increasing the company’s ownership percentage in Al-Ahlia Insurance Company from 3.19% to 5%. 

- Exiting from some local investments listed in Kuwait Stock Exchange. 

- Subscribing to bonds with a good investment credit rating issued by a major insurance group. 

- Receiving proceeds of maturating bonds issued by a large group with a good investment credit rating and 

reinvesting the proceeds in  listed shares in Kuwait Stock Exchange and heading to invest in the Gulf and 

American stock exchanges. 

Completion of the development of Sharjah Real Estate Project 

- In 2015, the company purchased a plot of land of approximately 1,000 square meters in the Al Nahda area in the 

Emirate of Sharjah, United Arab Emirates. 

- The area of Al Nahda was chosen due to its commercial and residential 

characteristic and it’s proximate close to the Emirate of Dubai, which 

facilitates transportation and increases the attractiveness of Al Nahda as a 

housing option for people working in Dubai.  

- The project is a residential investment tower consisting of a ground floor 

and five floors allocated for parking and 18 residential floors (a total of 24 

floors). 

- At the end of 2015, the company selected the Sharjah Engineering Consulting Office to carry out the design and 

supervision work for the project, due to the professionalism of the senior management and the company's talented 

and technical staff, in addition to the company's extensive experience and the diversity of its projects in the local 

market, which will constitute an added value during the design and development phase, Finally, the competitiveness 

of the quotation, which was also taken into consideration after verifying the company’s competence, experience and 

staff. 



- During the year 2017, the company signed a construction contracting contract with a contracting company that has a 

high technical rating from the Sharjah Municipality, where work on developing the project began in December of 2017 

and the construction process would take approximately 30 months. 

- Thankfully, the external structure of the project has been completed and internal and external finishing works have 

commenced during the last year. However, work on the site has experienced delays since March because of the work 

interruption due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the delay in obtaining the required approvals from the Sharjah 

Electricity, Water and Gas Authority. In addition to reducing the work labor in the project to about 30% of its usual 

capacity during that period. The project completion rate as of the end of 2020 reached 88%. 

- As we mentioned in our previous annual report, the company was keen on the quality of the finishing of the project 

in order to stimulate the demand for leasing within the presence of high competitiveness of the real estate market in 

Sharjah. 

- During the last quarter of 2021, the construction of the project was completed and 100% of the construction was 

accomplished. 

- Electricity, water and other services have been connected. 

- Obtaining the necessary official documents, papers and forms from the Emirate of Sharjah to start the process of 

leasing the tower. 

- The tower was named “Al-Mubarakiya“ after obtaining the approval of the concerned authorities in Sharjah, in order 

to start leasing. 

- Thankfully, leasing began in the tower during the first quarter of the current year 2022, as was expected. 

Overview of the Kuwaiti Economy 

The International Monetary Fund forecasts indicated the Kuwaiti economy will grow as  the real gross domestic product 

will grow  0.9% in 2021 and 4.3% in 2022. 

By the end of February 2022, the eleventh month of the current fiscal year 2022/2021, the average price of Kuwaiti oil 

per barrel reached about $ 94.2, which is higher by about $ 49.2  per barrel, or about 109.3% than the hypothetical price 

in the current budget of $ 45  per barrel. By the end of February, the average price of Kuwaiti oil barrel reached about $ 

76.8 during the first eleven months of the current fiscal year (April 2021 – February 2022) which is $ 33.3 higher than the 

average of the previous fiscal year of $ 43.5 per barrel, and remains lower by about $ 13.2 per barrel compared to the new 

break-even price for the current budget of $ 90, according to the Ministry of Finance’s estimates, and after stopping the 

deduction of 10% of total revenues for the benefit of the future generations reserve. This is according to Al-Shall weekly 
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economic report issue #9 for the month of March 2022. It is likely that the general budget for the fiscal year 2022/2021 

will record an estimated deficit between 1.4 billion Kuwait Dinars and 3.7 billion Kuwaiti Dinars if oil prices remain at 

the average of the past eleven months. With the current high oil prices level and exception, reinforced by the repercussions 

of the Ukrainian war, and therefore, it is expected that the deficit figure will be closer to the lower figure and may be less 

than that level if the average Kuwaiti oil price for the last month remains at its current level. 

Fitch Ratings lowered Kuwait's sovereign credit rating from (AA) to (-AA) with the future outlook changed from negative 

to stable. This reduction reflects persistent political constraints on decision-making that hinder addressing the structural 

challenges related to oil dependence, the generous welfare state and its large public sector, as well as the lack of serious 

and substantial fiscal adjustment to the oil price shocks. 

Financial Sector 

The main index of Kuwait Stock Exchange recorded a positive performance at the end of 2021 compared to its level at 

the end of 2020, reaching the level of 7043.2 points, i.e. an increase of 1497.2 points or by 27% compared to the level of 

5546 points. The market capitalization of the 167 listed companies at the end of the year reached about 41.902 billion 

Kuwaiti Dinars, and when we compare it with the end of 2020, we find that it achieved an increase of about 9.192 billion 

Kuwaiti Dinars or about 28.1%. 

Overview of the Global Economy 

The recovery of the global economy is still continuing after it stumbling as a result of the pandemic, which delayed the 

return of the situations completely to normal, and the outbreak of the pandemic between important links in global supply 

chains led to the interruption of supplies for longer periods than expected, which led to an increase in the ignition of 

inflation in many countries. 

The International Monetary Fund forecasts for global growth in 2021 indicated that it will reach 5.9% and the global 

economy will achieve a total growth rate of 4.9% in 2022, and the expectations indicate that the gross product of the 

group of advanced economies will return in 2022 to its pre-pandemic trend path. It exceeds it by 0.9% in 2024. On the 

contrary, expectations indicate that the gross product of the group of emerging market and developing economies 

(excluding China) in 2024 will remain lower than the pre-pandemic forecasts by 5.5%. 

2021 was the year of hikes in the financial markets 

2021 was the year of hikes, as financial markets witnessed a record return supported by governments and central banks 

that launched huge stimulus programs. 

US stocks performed spectacular during 2021, with the S&P 500 and Nasdaq gaining about 27% during the year, 

exceeding all expectations, and the S&P 500 ending the year at 4,766 points, a significant increase than analyst 

expectations, which averaged 4,074 points at the beginning of the year. 

The UK and emerging markets were largely left behind, with the MSCI UK Stock Index maintaining its decade-long 

trend of lagging behind its global peers, gaining only 11% in 2021 compared to 69% in Europe and 287% in USA, due 

to Brexit and lack of fast-growing technology stocks in British market. Meanwhile, the MSCI Emerging Markets Index 

fell 5% in late December, weighed down by China's rigorous regulatory campaigns on major sectors and stocks. 

Company Performance 

Thankfully, the company achieved a net profit of KD 3,521,897 compared to a loss of KD 5,070,988 for the year 2020, 

an increase of 169%, due to the exceptional performance of the associate company and the increase in investment income 

in our company’s portfolio by 115%. 

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2021                         13



Performance of the Associate 

The main investment for the company - which is classified as an associate – its  interest stake in Kuwait Financial Center 

Company, "Markaz". The total amount of shares in the Kuwait Financial Center Company is approximately 142.77 million 

shares, which represents 29.7% of the company’s shares. The associate company achieved exceptional profits for the 

shareholders of the parent company amounting to 14.987 million Kuwaiti Dinars in 2021, compared to a loss of 1.715 

million Kuwaiti Dinars at the end of 2020, with an increase of 974%.  

The credit for achieving these exceptional profits is mainly due to the increase in the fair value of financial assets carried 

at fair value through profits and losses. Dividend income, management fees and commissions increased by 21.36% and 

20.67%, respectively in 2021, in addition to an increase in net Rental income by 43.3% in 2021, as all these increases 

contributed to an increase in the company’s total revenues for the year 2021 to reach 30,642 million KD compared to a 

total revenue of 13.161 million KD in 2020, with an increase of 133%. It was also approved to distribute cash dividends 

of 10%, or 10 fils per share, in addition to distributing bonus shares at the rate of 5%. We extend our thanks, appreciation 

and gratitude to the management of the associate company for their success and continuity in preserving, developing and 

maximizing shareholders equity. 

Thanks and Gratitude 

At the end, I would like to extend my sincere thanks and gratitude to His Highness the Emir, Sheikh Nawaf Al-Ahmad 

Al-Jaber Al-Sabah, His Highness the Crown Prince Sheikh Mishal Al-Ahmad Al-Sabah, His Highness the Prime Minister 

Sheikh Sabah Al-Khaled Al-Sabah and all the regulatory authorities for their efforts to achieve what is in the good and 

progress of our country at all levels. Thanks are due to our valued shareholders for their support, which we hope will 

continue further in the future, and to our esteemed clients for the trust they have placed in us. Also, I would like to thank 

the management team and all company employees for their efforts to implement current and future business plans. 

Mishal Nasser Habib 

Vice Chairman & CEO 
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Chairman Message 

Dear KPFI shareholders, 

I am pleased to present to you the annual corporate governance report for the year 2021. 

In the light of the growing concern of our shareholders, including potential shareholders and investors, Kuwait 
Pillars decided to strengthen its corporate governance system in line with the finest local and international practices 
in this area. In this regard, Kuwait Pillars planned to strengthen the role of independent Board members and 
adopted sophisticated and distinguished work ethics in its sector as well as creating new regulatory laws and applying 
the delegation of authority system and integrate the role of the board of directors and committees at the heart of our 
business. 

In this regard, we support the need for strict adherence to principles that help establish the concept of transparency, 
accountability, integrity and ethics and honesty in our business which form without a doubt the cornerstone of any 
successful organization. Precisely for this reason comes our promise to ourselves and our investors and all our 
stakeholders to uphold the highest standards of probity and integrity in the management of the company. 

The annual corporate governance report as a whole confirms our commitment to always providing the best value for 
our shareholders. This stems from our recognition as a closed joint stock company that the sustainability of good 
corporate governance practices has become an ethical and economic imperative in the modern world of business 
development. 

We also are looking to achieve the desired objectives to improve existing practices and procedures in addition to 
implement developed governance framework for Kuwait Pillars and its affiliates so we can take a prestigious position 
in our business areas and thus achieve the vision of our shareholders. 

Finally we would like to take this opportunity to thank all the authorities and regulators that have contributed to 
better support the principles and practices of corporate governance and their implementation in State of Kuwait. 

Ghazi Al-Osaimi 

Chairman 
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Major Shareholders Ownership Percentage 

1 National Industries Group Holding 6.42% 

KPFI and its subsidiaries & associates 

Percentage referred to as statements of 31/12/2021 

Governance Report 
Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment K.S.C.C 

Major Shareholders of Kuwait Pillars that own 5% and more 
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Rule 1: Construct a balanced board composition 

Brief on the composition of the Board of Directors, as follows: 

The Board of Directors consists of executive, non-executive and independent members who are elected through the 
General Assembly and the Board of Directors includes a sufficient number of members to form committees within 
the framework of corporate governance. 

The Board of Directors consists of six elected members, and the election and renewal of the membership of Board 
of Directors members takes place every three years in accordance with the rules and regulations in force and the 
instructions issued by the Capital Markets Authority and other supervisory bodies. 

Name 

Member Classification 
(Executive, Non-

Executive, Independent) 
Board Secretary 

Qualifications & 
Professional Experience 

Date of Election/ 
Appointment of 
Board Secretary 

Ghazi Ahmed Al-Osaimi 
Chairman 

Non-executive 

BA in Business Administration – Finance / 
Gulf University for Science and Technology - 
Jan 2007 

5 May 2020 

Mishal Nasser Habib 
Vice Chairman & CEO 

Executive 

BA in Accounting / Kuwait University 1996 
- Computer science Diploma / Commercial 
Institute “Public Authority for Applied 
Sciences”  - 1992 

5 May 2020 

Soud Abdulaziz Al-Mansour 
Board Member 
Independent 

BA in General Administration & Finance- 
California - USA/ 2000 

5 May 2020 

Mohammad Saad Al-Saad 
Board Member 
Non-executive 

Bachelor of Business Administration/ 
Finance & Financial Institutions - Kuwait 
University 2005 

5 May 2020 

Jamal Abdullah Al-Saleem 
Board Member 
Non-executive 

BA in Accounting - Kuwait University- 
Master's degree in Accounting with first class 
honors - Oklahoma City University USA - 
1987 

5 May 2020 

Bandar Abdullah Al-Ghemlas 
Board Member 
Non-executive 

Bachelor of Business Administration/ 
Finance & Financial Institutions - Kuwait 
University 2003 
Master’s degree in Business Administration / 
Financial Management - American University 
of the Middle East - 2011 

5 May 2020 

Mohamed El-Sayed Taha Board Secretary 
Bachelor of Arts- English Literature- 
Mansoura University- Egypt -1998 

Appointed 11 March 
2014 
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The Board of Directors members were elected for a period of three years based on the decision of the General 
Assembly Meeting held on May 5, 2020. 

Statement of Board meetings Board of Directors Members 

Serial 
Meeting 

Number 

Date of 

Meeting 

Ghazi 

Al-Osaimi 

Chairman 

Mishal 

Habib 

Vice Chairman 

Jamal 

Al-Saleem 

Member 

Mohammad 

Al-Saad 

Member 

Soud 

Al-Mansour 

Member 

Bandar Al-

Ghemlas 

Member 

1 169 17/01/2021      

2 170 17/02/2021      

3 171 12/04/2021      

4 172 18/04/2021      

5 173 09/05/2021      

6 174 27/06/2021      

7 175 11/08/2021      

8 176 26/08/2021      

9 177 21/09/2021      

10 178 07/11/2021      

11 179 09/11/2021      

12 180 19/12/2021      

Attendance Percentage 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

A summary of how to apply the requirements of registration and coordination and keeping the 
minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors of the company. 

All meeting minutes are recorded through the Board Secretary, who in turn prepares all meeting related matters, 
communicates with all members, and coordinates with them for all meetings. It also provides board members with 
immediate and quick access to board meeting minutes, information’s, documents and records that help them make 
the right decisions in a timely and appropriate format. 

A declaration by the independent member that it fulfills the criteria for independence, 

The independent member acknowledges that he has the controls for independence, which are as follows: 

- He is not a personal owner of a number of the company’s shares representing more than 5% of the company’s 
shares. 

- He is not a first-degree relative with any of the Board of Directors members or the Executive Management of 
KPFI or any company of its group or the main related parties. 

- He is not a member of any company of its group. 

- He is not an employee of legal persons who own controlling shares in the company. 

- He is not an employee of the company or of any company of its group or of stakeholders. 

Governance Report 
Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment K.S.C.C 

Brief on the Company’s Board of Directors’ meetings, through the following statement: 
Meetings of the Board of Directors are held with a full quorum and the attendance by majority of the members. The 
members of the board of directors were keen to carry out the duties of leadership and responsibility through 
extensive meetings to supervise the management of the company in various fields and work on the proper utilization 
of the company's human and financial resources. The board held 12 meetings during the past year, while the articles 
of association states to meet at least 6 times. Details of the meetings are as follows: 
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Rule 2: Establish appropriate roles & responsibilities 

Brief on how the company defines the policy of the tasks, responsibilities, and duties of each of 
the Members of the Board of Directors and executive management members, as well as the 
powers and authorities delegated to the executive management. 

The company has a policy to define the duties, responsibilities and powers of the board of directors, which defines 
the powers that members of the board of directors perform and the powers that have been granted or delegated to 
the executive management to carry out, where a matrix of financial and administrative authorities has been approved 
for all levels of the executive body and the board of directors and the separation between them in contradiction with 
the tasks of each person who has authority or authorization in the members of the executive body, as the system 
defines dual control over the powers and there is no absolute authority or authorization for any person of board of 
directors members or the executive body. 

Achievements of the Board of Directors during year 2021 
- Approve the meetings minutes of the committees emanating from the Board of Directors. 

- Discuss and approval of Risk Management Reports, Compliance Reports and Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorism 
Financing Reports. 

- Discuss the annual work plan for 2021 & 2022. 

- Discuss the annual budget for the year 2021 & 2022. 

- Discuss the approval of the quarterly and annual financial statements. 

- Discuss the latest update on the cases from /against the company. 

- Review the agenda of the Ordinary General Assembly for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020, and invite to the 
Assembly Meeting. 

- Discuss and approve updates on the company's policies and procedures. 

- Discuss and approval of 2020 ICR report. 

- Discuss the annual report prepared by the external auditor for the year 2020 regarding the assessment of the extent of 
Kuwait Pillars' compliance with all the determinants and legislative requirements contained in the Anti-Money 
Laundering and Terrorism Financing Law, as well as the instructions issued by Capital Markets Authority in this 
regard. 

- Discuss and approve the annual report of the custodian’s activity. 

- Discuss the governance report according to the form prepared by the Capital Markets Authority (CG online report). 

- Discuss the appointment of a Vice President – International Investments Department. 

- Discuss and approve the policies and procedures manual for the capital adequacy standard. 

- Review and discuss the credit facilities granted to companies and take the necessary decisions in this regard. 

- Discuss the renewal of the credit facilities provided by Burgan Bank. 

- Discuss and approve the assessment of risk and anti-money laundering procedures. 

- Discuss the company’s issued and paid-up capital increase. 
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committees by the Board of Directors. 

The Board of Directors has approved the formation of its committees in order to enhance the effective supervision 
and control of all its operations and the activities of the company to ensure best practices. The following is an 
overview of those committees: 

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee consists of (3) members, including at least one independent member, and its membership is 

not occupied by the Chairman or the Executive Board members. It was formed on 06/05/2020 for a period of three 

years. The audit committee shall also hold periodic meetings with the external auditors and at least four meetings 

annually with the internal auditor. 

The tasks and achievements of the audit committee during the year 2021 

- Discuss the appointment of an external office to carry the audit during the year 2021. 

- Discuss the 2021audit plan. 

- Recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the annual and quarterly financial statements. 

- Discuss the appointment of an audit firm to carry out the evaluation and review of internal control systems 
(ICR) for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020. 

- Discuss the internal audit report on the procedures and internal control systems for the year 2020. 

- Recommend the appointment of the external auditor for the year 2021. 

- Review and approve the ICR Report for the year 2020. 

- Discuss and approve internal audit reports for all company’s departments. 

Members of the Audit Committee 

Name Position within the Committee Membership 

Mr. / Jamal Abdullah Al-Saleem Chairman Non-Executive 

Mr. / Soud Abdulaziz Al-Mansour Member Independent 

Mr. / Bandar Abdullah Al-Ghemlas Member Non-Executive 

The number of meetings held by the audit committee during the year 2021 
During the year 2021, the committee held (7) meetings. 
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Risk Committee 
The Risk Committee consists of (3) members, and its chairman shall be non-executive board members. The 

Chairman of the Board of Directors may not be a member of the Risk Committee. It was formed on 06/05/2020 

for a period of three years. The Risk Committee shall meet periodically during the year (4) times. 

The tasks and achievements of the risk committee during the year 2021 

- Review and discuss the risk management action plan for the year 2021. 

- Review and approve risk management reports for regulatory authorities. 

- Review periodic reports on the company’s risks that may be exposed to. 

- Discuss and approve the risk register. 

- Discuss and approve the risk assessment and anti-money laundering measures. 

Members of the Audit Committee 

Name Position within the Committee Membership 

Mr. / Soud Abdulaziz Al-Mansour Chairman Independent 

Mr. / Jamal Abdullah Al-Saleem Member Non-Executive 

Mr. / Bandar Abdullah Al-Ghemlas Member Non-Executive 

The number of meetings held by the risk committee during the year 2021 
During the year 2021, the committee held (4) meetings. 

Remuneration & Nomination Committee 
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee consists of (3) members, including an independent member, and it is 

chaired by a non-executive member. It was formed on 06/05/2020 for a period of three years. The Remuneration 

and Nomination Committee holds at least one meeting annually. 

The tasks and achievements of the remuneration & nomination committee during the year 2021 

- Discuss the results of the annual evaluation of the company's employees for the year 2020. 

- Discuss the annual evaluation of the company's employees for independent positions for the year 2020. 

- Discuss bonuses and salary increases for company employees for the year 2020. 

- Discuss the remuneration of the members of the committees and the secretary of the committees emanating 
from the Board of Directors for the year 2020. 

- Discuss the CEO reward for the year 2020. 

- Prepare a detailed annual report on all remunerations granted to members of the Board of Directors and the 
Executive Management, whether they are sums, benefits or benefits of whatever nature or name, and presenting 
it to the general assembly of shareholders for approval. 

- Discuss the appointment of Vice President – International Investments Department. 

Members of Remuneration & Nomination Committee 

Name Position within the Committee Membership 

Mr. / Soud Abdulaziz Al-Mansour Chairman Independent 

Mr. / Ghazi Ahmed Al-Oseimi Member Non-Executive 

Mr./  Mohammad Saad Al-Saad Member Non-Executive 

The number of meetings held by the remuneration & nomination committee during the year 2021 
During the year 2021, the committee held (2) meetings. 
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The tasks and achievements of the investment committee during the year 2021 

- Take appropriate corrective measures in order to preserve the company's interests and asset quality. 

- Monitor the performance of the company's investment portfolio. 

- Review and approve the recommendations made by the Asset Management Department regarding investment 
operations. 

Members of Remuneration & Nomination Committee 

Name Position within the Committee Membership 

Mr. / Mishal Nasser Habib Chairman Executive 

Mr. / Mohammad Saad Al-Saad Member Non-Executive 

Mr. / Jamal Abdullah Al-Saleem Member Non-Executive 

The number of meetings held by the investment committee during the year 2021 
During the year 2021, the committee held (5) meetings. 

A summary of how to apply the requirements of registration and coordination and keeping the 
minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors of the company. 
The Board members are provided with all information and data by hand or through e-mail and by sending them 
comprehensive reports for viewing. Communication is done via e-mail and all ways of communication. Through 
board secretary all documents, minutes of board meetings, and minutes of committees meetings are kept in files that 
are easy for the board members to request and to have access to. 

Governance Report 
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Rule 3: Recruit highly qualified candidates for members of a board of directors and the 
Executive Management 

Brief  about  the  application  of  the  formation  requirements  of  the  nominations  and  
remunerations committee. 
The Remuneration and Nominations Committee is made up of three members, including an independent member, 
and none of the executive members occupy its membership. According to the remuneration and nomination 
committee approved by the company, among the committee's tasks are: 
1. Establishing a clear policy for the remuneration of members of the Board of Directors and the Executive

Management.
2. Determine the different categories of rewards that will be granted to employees, such as the fixed bonus

segment and the variable bonus segment.
3. Reviewing the bonus policy and assessing its effectiveness in achieving its desired goals.
4. Prepare a detailed annual report on all remunerations granted to members of the Board of Directors and the

executive management.
5. Recommending the nomination or re-nomination for membership of the Board of Directors and the Executive

Management.

Report on the remunerations to the Members of the Board of Directors and Executive 
Management 

1. Summary of the company's remuneration and incentives policy, in particular what is related to
the Board of Directors members, executive management and managers

a. Board remuneration policy:
The remuneration policy for directors states the following:

- The total remuneration must not exceed 10% of the net profit of the company after deducting
depreciation, reserves and shareholder profits that are not less than 5% of the company's capital. 

- Board members ’remuneration must be approved by the General Assembly at its annual meeting, based 
on the recommendation of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee. 

- Based on the approval of the general assembly, an independent member of the board of directors can be 
exempted from the maximum remuneration limit. 
According to the company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2021, the 
Board of Directors recommended to distribute bonuses for the board of directors’ members amounting 
168,000 Kuwaiti Dinars (one hundred and sixty eight thousand Kuwaiti Dinar) for the fiscal year ending 
on December 31, 2021. 

- Members of the committees emanating from the Board of Directors are granted a committee 
attendance allowance based on the recommendation of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, 
the recommendation of the Board of Directors, and the approval of the General Assembly of the 
company’s shareholders. 

b. Remuneration and incentives policy for the executive management members and company
employees:
Kuwait Pillars grants several bonuses and incentives to its working employees in accordance with the annual
evaluation of the employee, which is carried out according to specific technical and professional standards.
These bonuses are allocated in amounts that suit the employee's performance and provide the required
motivation and encouragement to continue and raise the level of job performance. The company, through
the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, in cooperation with the Administrative Affairs, created and
developed plans for short and long-term remuneration that seek to create an attractive business
environment and focus on encouraging workers at various job levels in the company.
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2. According to the company's financial statements for the year 2021, the remunerations and benefits for
the members of the board of directors and senior executives who received the highest remunerations, in
addition to the CEO and the financial manager

Remunerations and benefits for board of directors' members 

Remunerations & benefits from the parent company Remunerations & benefits from the subsidiaries 
companies 

Total 
number 
of board 
members 
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Variable remunerations & 
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The total remunerations and benefits granted to five senior executives who received the highest 
remunerations, in addition to the CEO and the financial manager 

Remunerations & benefits from the parent company Remunerations & benefits 
from the subsidiaries 

companies 

Total 
number 
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executive 
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7 263,846 6,400 6,368 6,000 2,800 17,144 79,305 119,639 0 0 0 0 

3. Fundamental deviations from the remuneration policy approved by the Board of Directors
There are no fundamental deviations from the remuneration policy.
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Rule 4: Safeguard the Integrity of Financial Reporting 

Written undertakings by both the Board of Directors and the Executive Management of the 
soundness and integrity of the prepared financial reports 

- The executive management of Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment undertakes to the Board of Directors of 
the company that the financial reports are presented in a sound and fair manner, and that they review all the 
financial aspects of the company in terms of operational data and results, and that they have been prepared in 
accordance with international accounting standards approved by the Authority. 

- The Board of Directors undertakes the integrity of all financial statements as well as reports related to the 
company's activity and confirms that there are no material issues or events that may affect the continuation of 
the company's operations during the next financial year. 

Brief about the application of the formation requirements of the audit committee. 
The Audit Committee is formed of three members and one of its members is independent. Its membership does not 
include the chairman or executive board members. The members of the audit committee have academic 
qualifications and practical experience in the accounting and financial fields. 

Conflicts between the recommendations of the audit committee and the decisions of the board of 
directors 
No discrepancy has been identified between the audit committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors during 
the year 2021. 

Verification of the independence of the external Auditor. 

Deloitte & Touche Al-Wazzan & Co 

- The board of directors submits its recommendations to choose the external auditor to be reviewed with the 
general assembly to appoint the company's external auditor 

- The company’s auditor is registered in the auditors ’register at the Capital Markets Authority. 

- The external auditor is not a partner or a party to any agreement or an agent of one of the founders of the 
company or a member of the board of directors or any of their relatives up to the fourth degree. 

- Selection of the external auditor depends on competence, reputation and experience. 
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A  brief  statement  on  the  application  of  the  formation  requirements  of  a  department/  an  
office/  an  independent unit of risk management 

An independent risk management department has been established, and those in charge of it have complete 
independence through their direct subordination to the Risk Management Committee (instead of the Board of 
Directors according to CMA Resolution No. 124 of 2018 dated September 19, 2018) in addition to having a large 
amount of powers in order to carry out their duties to the fullest extent without granting them financial powers and 
authorities or any authorities that lead to a conflict with their supervisory role. The Risk Management Department 
reviews the deals and transactions proposed to be carried out by the company with related parties, and makes 
appropriate recommendations regarding them to the Board of Directors. 

A brief overview of the requirements for forming a risk management committee 

The Board of Directors has formed a Risk Management Committee of 3 members. It is chaired by a non-executive 
board member, including an independent member. The committee holds 4 periodic meetings during the year as a 
minimum. Among the tasks of the risk committee are the following: 

 Reviewing risk management systems and internal controls at least once a year to ensure that all risks that may
face achieving business objectives are mitigated by applying appropriate and effective controls. The audit should
include financial statement controls, operations, risk management, and internal control systems.

 The audit procedures followed by the company’s management to identify, assess and manage significant risks.

 Changes that have occurred since the last review in the nature and extent of major risks and the ability of the
company to adapt to changes in operations and the external environment. The scope and nature of risk control
activities, internal control systems, external audits, reviewing weaknesses and defects of the control system or
unexpected emergencies that have affected or may significantly affect the performance of the company's
financial position and the procedures followed by the company to address the core issues of control and review
the company's compliance with the approved laws and regulations Related to the company.

Summary clarifying the control and internal audit systems 

Internal control system 

The company’s board of directors is responsible for managing risks and internal control systems and reviewing their 
effectiveness, through preserving assets, keeping correct financial statements, and detecting errors and irregularities. 
The Board of Directors is obligated to review the report of the Risk Committee on the results of internal control 
activities and the periodic reports on control activities. 

 Internal control includes defining a clear organizational structure, writing down policies and guidelines, defining
the powers, authorities, mandates, and performance control mechanisms that have been put in place to
effectively and regularly monitor the company's operations and ensure compliance with governance laws issued
by all regulatory authorities.

Our Internal Control System is comprised of a group of procedures applied by the board of directors, the executive 
management, as well as the company’s employees. Such procedures are designed to provide reasonable, not ultimate, 
guarantee for achieving the following objectives: 

 Risk management: ensure identifying the risks and controls required for achieving the company’s objectives.

 Operations’ effectiveness and efficiency: To conduct operations in a precise way with pre-approved
procedures to ensure expected accuracy and smooth customer’s service.

 Authenticity of Financial Reports: ensure presenting authentic financial statements and information to the
board, shareholders and Top Management.
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 Internal audit reports: Review the internal reporting procedures and determine the integrity of financial
position of the company.

 Audit of internal control systems: A report is prepared by an independent auditor annually on internal control 
systems.

 Adherence to applicable laws and legislations: adhere to the laws and regulations governing the company, to
avoid harming the company’s image or receiving penalties.

A  brief  statement  on  the  application  of  the  formation  requirements  the  internal  audit  
department/ office/ unit 

The company has an internal audit department and the department uses an independent professional audit office to 
carry out the internal audit work. The internal audit officer coordinates and supervises the internal audit processes 
with the external entity, ensures compliance with policies and procedures, and the adequacy of internal control 
systems, and coordinates with heads of departments and divisions of the company regarding the audit process and 
issues reports of exceptions to the management, with recommendations and follow-up with the management. 

Rule 6: Promote code of conduct & ethical standards 

A summary of the business charter including standards and determinants of code of conduct and 
ethical standards. 

The Board of Directors, through the code of professional conduct rules and ethics, defines good practices for 
governance and its work. This includes the means to ensure that these practices are followed, reviewed and regularly 
updated with a view to improving them. 
The Board of Directors takes the lead in defining professional standards and corporate values that enhance the 
integrity of the company, senior management and employees. 
The code of professional conduct and ethics shall be circulated to all employees of the company and to the board of 
directors’ members to obtain their signatures with the instructions stated therein. 

Summary of the policies and mechanisms on reducing the conflicts of interest 

Our company has written conflict of interest policies covering all issues related to the subject of conflict of interest 
and its prospects, including but not limited to: 

 Avoid a member of the board of directors from engaging in activities likely to lead to conflicts of interest.

 Board of director’s approval of any activity by a member of the board may result in a conflict of interest.

Rule 7: Ensure Timely and High Quality Disclosure and Transparency 

Summary of the application of mechanisms for presentation and accurate and transparent 
disclosure that define aspects, areas and characteristics of disclosure: 

The company has set a policy for disclosure and transparency and has been approved by the Board of Directors, and 
has set standards for disclosure of essential information specified by the executive regulations of the Capital Markets 
Authority Law, and defined the elements of disclosure and information to be disclosed and the departments 
responsible for communicating the information. Disclosure thereof in addition to other means represented on the 
company's website. 
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Brief about the disclosure record requirements of Board Members, Executive Management & 
Managers: 

A register of disclosures for members of the Board of Directors, Executive Management and Managers has been 
prepared at the Compliance Dep. and circulate it to the members of the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Management to inform the Director of the Department of any transactions for them or their minor children on the 
shares of the company, the parent company, the subsidiary companies, or the companies that the KPFI is considered 
as a corporate insiders. 

The transactions of the members of the Board of Directors and their first-degree relatives in the shares of the 

company in 2021 were as follows: 

Description Number Relation
Total sale 
(of shares) 

Total purchase 
(of shares) 

Date of 
Operation 

Remarks 

Board Member 1 Personal - 23,624 shares 
03 

November 
2021 

It was disclosed to the 
compliance dept. on 
November 03, 2021  

Executive 
Management 

- - - - - - 

Managers - - - - - - 

Employees - - - - - - 

Board members and their first degree relatives did not conduct any dealings in the company's shares during 2021. 
Thus, we continue our efforts in developing the performance of our services and following a more transparent 
principle in all aspects of dealing with shareholders and investors. 

A brief statement on the application of the formation requirements of a unit of investor’s affairs. 

The Investor Affairs Unit has been established to provide the largest amount of information regarding current and 
potential future investors, and this unit is responsible for establishing and providing the necessary data, information 
and reports to investors, as the Investor Affairs Unit has the appropriate independence that helps it to provide timely 
and accurate data and reports. 

Disclosure through IT systems 

Through the development of its electronic portal, our company strives to present and disclose all information and 
data and utilize the means of information technology to communicate with the general public. The company is also 
aware that the disclosure system is an effective tool to influence the company's behavior and protect the 
shareholders and enhance their confidence in the company. The company provides its shareholders and investors 
with accurate, comprehensive, detailed and timely information through the company's website, which reflects 
transparently all data, organizational structure and control procedures and policies through dissemination of 
information of annual reports, quarterly reports through the website (www.kuwaitpillars.com.kw) in Arabic and 
English. 

The company also maintains a complete record of disclosure and is internally documented and can be accessed 
sequentially through the company's website. 
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Rule 8: Respect the rights of shareholders 

A summary of the application of the requirements for the identification and protection of the 
general rights of shareholders, in order to ensure fairness and equality amongst all shareholders. 

The shareholders have the right to review and participate in the decisions that may affect the future of the company 
or its activities. The company provides all necessary information to the shareholders in a timely and appropriate 
manner through advertising in newspapers or through the company official website to allow them to exercise all their 
rights to the fullest. 

A summary of the creation of a special record at the Clearing Agency as part of the requirements 
for on-going monitoring of shareholders’ data. 

The Company has established a register of shareholders deposited with (Kuwait Clearing Company) through which 
the data relating to shareholders and their ownership is continuously monitored through continuous follow-up in the 
change of ownership and what arises from it.  

 Brief on how to encourage shareholders to participate and vote in the company's general 
assembly meetings. 

The management of the company is keen to publish within enough time about the annual general meeting and 
invites all its shareholders to attend and vote the meetings through the advertising means and announces at sufficient 
intervals by means of another announcement to remind shareholders to attend the meetings. 

Rule 9: Recognizing the roles of stakeholders 

Brief about conditions and policies that ensure protection and recognition of the rights of 
stakeholders. 

The company is committed to protecting the rights of all stakeholders and providing stability and sustainability 
through its good financial performance. The Stakeholder Protection Policy has been formulated and adopted to set 
guidelines on how to protect these rights. Appropriate mechanisms have also been put in place to facilitate the 
stakeholders' reporting to the company's board of directors of any improper practices they are exposed to by the 
company, while providing appropriate protection to the parties who report. 

Brief on how to encourage stakeholders to keep track of the company's various activities 

Stakeholders have an important and influential role in the success of the company's business. The Board realizes that 
the ultimate success of the company is the result of the joint efforts of many parties including shareholders, lenders 
and employees. The company's procedures, approved policies and practices emphasize the importance of respecting 
the rights of stakeholders in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations and systems. The company is working 
to encourage stakeholders to participate to follow up on the various activities of the company and has set up 
mechanisms and frameworks to ensure maximum benefit from the contributions of stakeholders and urge them to 
participate in the follow-up of its activities, in a manner consistent with achieving its interests to the fullest with 
providing stakeholders the right to get the information and data related to their activities. 
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A  summary  of  the  application  of  the  requirements  for  the  development  of  mechanisms  that  
allow Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management to attend the training 
programs and courses regularly. 

The company has set induction programs for newly appointed members and employees in order to ensure that they 
have an appropriate understanding of the company's workflow and operations, provided that these programs include 
the company's strategy, objectives, financial and operational aspects of all the company's activities, the legal and 
supervisory obligations of the members of the Board of Directors and the company, responsibilities and tasks 
assigned to them, as well as the powers and rights available to them, and the role of the committees emanating from 
the Board of Directors. The company also provides training programs and suitable workshops for both the current 
members of the board of directors and the executive management, related to the company's work, in order to 
develop their skills and experience and keep abreast of developments in a way that helps them to perform the tasks 
assigned to them. 

Brief  on  how  to  evaluate  the  performance  of  the  Board  as  a  whole,  and  the  performance  
of  each Member of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management. 

Each member submits his self-evaluation to the Board of Directors, and the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee is responsible for managing the evaluation process, discussing the results of the performance evaluation, 
and identifying the strengths or weaknesses that have been identified. The members ’needs for training and 
development are determined in order to increase awareness of the main technical, financial and administrative 
aspects related to the company's activity. 

An overview of the Board of Director's efforts in asserting the importance of corporate value 
creation with the employees at the company through achieving the company’s strategic goals and 
improving key performance indicators 

The board of directors is making efforts to create institutional values (value creation) for the company's employees 

by achieving strategic objectives and improving performance rates. 

1 The executive management shall hold regular meetings with all employees, managers and heads of
departments in the company to find new ideas and to encourage all employees to communicate with the
executive management and the board of directors.

2 The human resources department develops an annual plan to train all employees on an annual basis in order
to prepare them for executive and leadership positions in the future.

3 In addition to the technical training programs selected by the departments for their employees.

Rule 11: Focus on the Importance of Corporate Social Responsibility 

A summary of the development of a policy to ensure a balance between each of the company goals 
and society goals. 

The Board of Directors has adopted a policy of social responsibility whereby Kuwait Pillars is keen that the 
company's social responsibility is integrated into the company's daily operations. It seeks coordination and 
communication between the company and all its functional units, as the commitment towards social responsibility is 
translated into specific goals and included in the companies' policies and procedures. And, with the emergence of the 
Corona pandemic, which attacked all countries of the world, the private sector has become in great challenge with 
the repercussions of this pandemic and its effects on the economic, social and health levels. From this standpoint, 
the company has taken all preventive procedures and measures to preserve the safety and health of its employees, by 
conducting work and meetings remotely, avoiding meetings and gatherings, as well as adhering to social distancing, 
wearing masks, sterilizing hands constantly, and securing everything necessary to adhere to these preventive 
measures.
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Brief about the programs and mechanisms helping to highlight the company's efforts exerted in 
the field of social work. 

Our Human Resources 

The human element is the most important resource of the company, so it is important to keep all the social 
responsibilities towards it and to develop and apply a strong relationship between the company and its employees. 
Some of social practices adopted by the company in this frame are: 

 Support national workforce.

 Provide an opportunity for fresh graduates to raise their abilities and contribution in society.

 Rewards and incentives for personnel in accordance with the principle of efficiency and trustworthy.

 Raise the morale of employees and spread the spirit of cooperation, motivation and encouragement among
them.

 Training and development: the company has launched several courses and training programs aimed to develop
the skills of its staff and to expand their knowledge.

 Safety and sound lifestyle.

 Staff members’ commitment to work.

 Business diversification.

 Integrity and credibility of business.

 Recruitment and retention.

 The company's commitment to apply the related laws and regulations and executing them fairly with its
employees.

Social Initiatives 

In pursuit of company’s management on social responsibility, which is one of the most important forms of 

distinguishing the Kuwaiti economy, which is full of many humanitarian initiatives, and in an effort to continue and 

be committed to performing the ethical role in accordance with the requirements of laws and public norms, Kuwait 

Pillars for Financial Investment has contributed to supporting the Kuwaiti Association for Down Syndrome by 

participating in some educational and rehabilitation activities organized by the association. It is one of the public 

benefit societies concerned with people with intellectual disabilities, especially the Down syndrome category, and 

among its goals is to take care of this group of both sexes and from all age groups to qualify them and develop their 

mental capabilities as well as their individual and collective skills to be effective elements in the society in which they 

live. 

Support of National Workforce 

One of the most important pillars of social responsibility for Kuwait Pillars is the concern for human development, 

especially for national cadres. During the year 2021, some employees were registered to attend the online course 

“Anti-Money Laundering and the Financial of Terrorism” at the Seattle International for Training Institute. Some 

employees were also registered to attend training programs and online lectures organized by Union of Investment 

Companies and Abdulaziz Hamad Al-Sager Center, as well as attending lectures at The Chartered Institute for 

Securities & Investment “CISI”, to increase their practical experience to advance to the advanced professional level, 

which contributes to promote the national economy. 
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Which reported the integrity of the internal control and oversight systems for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 

2021. The following is the certificate of the External Audit Office on reviewing the internal control systems: 

Governance Report 
Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment K.S.C.C 

The External Auditor's Confirmation of the Adequacy of the ICR Systems 
Kuwait Pillars has contracted with an external audit office (independent of the company's external auditor) to ensure 

the integrity of the accounting records and other records and the company's internal control systems. 
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Board of director’s confirmation on the adequacy of internal audit control systems 

The Board of Directors of Kuwait Pillars confirms that the company's internal control systems are continuously 

verified and efficient and that they are comprehensive, monitored and reviewed in a timely manner, within the 

framework of an organizational structure characterized by transparency and clarity and the limits of responsibility 

and accountability are monitored. The implementation of approved policies and procedures is monitored through 

the work the internal audit Dep. that reviews internal controls, duties and responsibilities in addition to the correct 

use of the powers granted with an emphasis on risk-based audit. 

Audit Committee’s annual report on internal audit procedures for accounts and other records and 
internal control systems 

We have reviewed the internal auditors' reports for the year ending in 2021, which included auditing procedures, 

checking accounts and internal control systems for Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment (KSCC) during the year 

ending December 31, 2021, under which they covered the examination and audit procedures as follows: 

1. Corporate Governance (Board of Directors - Board Committees).

2. Asset Management (Local and Regional Investment - International Investment - Development and Private

Equity - Anti Money Laundering).

3. Information Technology Department - Anti Money Laundering.

4. Human Resources and Administration - Anti Money Laundering.

5. Finance and Accounts - Anti Money Laundering.

6. Compliance - Anti Money Laundering.

7. Risk Management.

We have reviewed the reports of the Internal Audit Department on the examination and audit procedures to ensure 

that Kuwait Pillars complies with the regulatory requirements issued by the Capital Markets Authority and general 

guidelines issued by Central Bank of Kuwait regarding internal audit and internal control systems. 

We would like to refer to our role as members of the audit committee and members of the board of directors, which 

includes designing, implementing and maintaining audit procedures and internal control systems. Taking into 

consideration the proportionality of the cost of the elements of these systems with the benefits expected from their 

application. And that the aim of this clarification is to provide appropriate and reasonable assurances of the adequacy 

of audit procedures, followed systems, risk management procedures, and compliance procedures to protect the 

assets and assets of the company that may result from irresponsible actions or uses, that risks are monitored and 

evaluated and that operations are carried out in accordance with approved and followed procedures of powers and 

authorizations. And it is recorded correctly. 

In our opinion - taking into account - the nature and size of operations during the year ending on December 31, 

2021, the accounting records, other records, audit procedures, internal control systems, the level of performance of 

risk tendency and the supervisory compliance procedures that we have reviewed, reviewed and examined, as well as 

measures to combat money laundering and terrorist financing, have been completed. Establishing and maintaining 

them in accordance with the requirements of the Capital Markets Authority regarding audit procedures, internal 

control systems, risk management, regulatory compliance procedures, in addition to the governance system, which 

are properly recorded and implemented. 
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Note 2021 2020 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 640,044 2,126,869

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6 7,164,204 2,450,686

Financial assets at fair value through OCI 6 3,978,006 3,838,260

Investments at amortized cost 7 648,628 1,743,113

Receivables and other debit balances 298,062 318,842

Investment in an associate 8 529,99723, 19,559,996

Investment properties 9 602,3273, 3,302,581

Finance receivables 10 4,145,711 4,186,548

Other assets 55,380 104,262

Total assets 3,787,6344 37,631,157

Liabilities and equity 
Liabilities 
Payables and other credit balances 11 1,164,207 705,398

Due to banks 12 8,150,000 5,610,000

9,314,207 6,315,398

Equity 
Share capital 13.1 30,000,000 30,000,000

Share premium 697,235 697,235

Statutory reserve 13.2 4151,093, 724,425

Voluntary reserve 13.3 109,340 72,441

Foreign currency translation reserve 714,34 13,295

Change in fair value reserve 4315,45 175,708

Group’s share of an associate’s reserve (2,426,749) (2,156,549)

Treasury shares 14 )39(6 (484)

Gain from sale of treasury shares 146,663 146,663

Retained earnings  4,524,361 1,643,025

Total equity 34,473,427 31,315,759

Total liabilities and equity 3,787,6344 ,15737,631

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Ghazi Ahmed Al Osaimi 
Chairman  

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 



Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 
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Note 2021 2020 
Revenues  
Management fees  33,467 36,499

Investment income 15 893,160 416,069

Shares of results from an associate 8 ,8734744, (450,872)

Interest income 216,996 361,923

Rental income 82,042 81,190

Impairment on investment in associate - (3,693,582)

Change in fair value of investment properties 9 (569,455) (912,723)

Other income 0,610)(6 190,760

070,4735, (3,970,736)

Expenses 
Staff costs  825,327 615,028

General and administrative expenses 271,450 251,642

Depreciation 81,074 79,875

Interest expense 202,725 153,707

1,380,576 1,100,252

Profit before statuary deductions 3,689,897 (5,070,988)

BOD Remunerations 168,000 -

Net profit / (loss) for the year 8973,521, (5,070,988)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 



Net profit/(loss) for the year 3,521,897 (5,070,988)

Other comprehensive income items 
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to the consolidated 
statement of income 

Foreign currency translation differences 1,052 (158)

Group’s share of an associate’s reserves (270,200) 38,858

(269,148) 38,700

Items that may be not reclassified subsequently to the consolidated 
statement of income 

Change in fair value of investments at FVOCI 139,746 158,330

Total other comprehensive (loss)/income items (129,402) 197,030

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 3,392,495 (4,873,958)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 

2021 2020 



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 

Share 
Capital 

Share 
premium 

Statutory 
reserve 

Voluntary 
reserve 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

Change in 
fair value 
reserve 

Group’s 
share of an 
associate 
reserve 

Treasury 
shares 

Gain from 
sale of 

treasury 
shares 

Retained 
earnings 

Total 

Balance as at 1 January 2020  30,000,000 697,235 724,425 72,441 3,4531 17,378 (2,195,407) (268) 146,663 6,718,564 36,194,484

Net loss for the year - - - - - - - - - (5,070,988) (5,070,988) 

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) items - - - - (158) 158,330 38,858 - - - 197,030

Total comprehensive income/ (loss)  - - - - 158)( 158,330 38,858 - - (5,070,988) (4,873,958) 

Effect of change in ownership percentage 

of subsidiaries in associate - - - - - - - - - (4,551) (4,551)

Purchase of treasury shares - - - - - - - (216) - - (216)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 30,000,000 97,2356 724,425 72,441 13,295 175,708 (2,156,549) (484) 146,663 1,643,025 31,315,759

Balance as at 1 January 2021 30,000,000 697,235 724,425 72,441 13,295 175,708 (2,156,549) (484) 146,663 1,643,025 31,315,759

Net profit for the year - - - - 3,521,897 3,521,897

Other comprehensive (loss) / income items - - - - 1,052 139,746 (270,200) - - (129,402)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income - - - - 1,052 139,746 (270,200) - - 3,521,897 3,392,495

Effect of change in ownership percentage 

of subsidiaries in associate - - - - - - - - - )2(234,67 (234,672)

Purchase of treasury shares - - - - - - - (155) - - (155)

Transfer to reserves - - 368,990 36,899 - - - - - (405,889)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 30,000,000 697,235 1,093,415 109,340 347 14, 315,454 (2,426,749) (639) 146,663 4,524,361 42734,473,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) for the year 3,619,897 ,070,988)(5

Adjustments:  

Depreciation 81,074 79,875

Investment income 15 (893,160) (416,069)

Share of result from an associate 8 (4,474,873) 450,872

Interest income (216,996) (361,923)

Impairment in associate - 3,693,582

Impairment in investment properties 9 569,455 912,723

Interest expense 202,725 153,707

Operating losses before changes in working capital (1,111,878) (558,221)

Receivables and other debit balances  20,780 (10,527)

Finance receivables 40,837 893,218

Payables and other credit balances  360,809 (275,693)

Net cash (used in)/ generated operating activities (689,452) 48,777

Cash flow from investing activities
Paid for purchase of investments  482)(6,083, (671,133)

Proceeds from sale of investments 2,022,328 880,799

Paid for purchase of additional shares in an associate - (388,079)

Dividends received from an associate - 690,761

Paid for addition to investment properties (622,811) (613,392)

Paid for purchase of property and equipment 2,804)( (31,634)

Paid for purchase of investment held to maturity (300,000) (50,000)

Proceeds from investment held to maturity  5481,394, -

Proceeds from sale of joint venture - 1,099,131

Dividends received 240,796 323,433

Interest income received 216,996 361,923

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (3,134,492) 1,601,809

Cash flow from financing activities 
Due to banks 2,540,000 87,200

Finance cost paid (202,725) (153,707)

Paid for purchase of treasury shares (156) (216)

Net cash generated/(used in) from financing activities 2,337,119 (66,723)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,486,825) 1,583,863

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,126,869 ,006543

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 640,044 2,126,869

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 2021 2020 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated) 

1. Incorporation and activities
Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment-KSCC, the “Parent Company” is a Kuwaiti Shareholding Company
incorporated in Kuwait in 1998 and is regulated by the Central Bank of Kuwait and Capital Markets Authority.
The Parent Company was listed in the Kuwait Stock Exchange on 3 December 2008. On 8 July 2016 based on
the shareholders extraordinary General Assembly meeting, the Company has voluntarily elected to delist from
Kuwait stock exchange effective from 1 March 2016. The Company has obtained the approval from CMA to
delist on 31 August 2015.

The objectives of the Parent Company are:

Financial investment operations in all economic sectors by all legal means deemed appropriate by the Parent
Company to achieve its objectives inside and outside Kuwait for its benefit or others, including:

- Sale and purchase of financial securities for the Company and others with no violation to provisions of law.

- Lending or borrowing and issuing bonds as per Law and financing the foreign trade operations.

- Carrying out financial brokerage operations and managing investments for others.

- Providing and preparing studies and technical, economic and revaluation consultancies, as well as studying
the related investment projects and preparing the necessary studies for those institutions and companies 
(provided the necessary conditions should be met). 

- Establishing or participating in the establishing of companies of all types, objectives and nationalities and 
deal in selling and purchasing of shares, bonds and financial rights of those companies. 

- Managing financial and real estate portfolios for the company and for others and investing and developing 
its customers’ funds through placing them in all aspects of local and global investment. 

- Investing in real estate, industrial, agricultural and other economic sectors either directly or by contributing 
in the establishment of specialized companies or purchasing shares or bonds of those companies in different 
sectors. 

- Establishing, managing and marketing investment funds of all types as per Law. 

- Carrying out the function of bonds issuing manager, which are issued by companies and authorities, and 
investment custodian’s functions. 

- Dealing and trading in the foreign exchange market and precious metals market inside and outside Kuwait 
for the company’s benefit only. 

- Providing all services that assist developing and supporting the ability of the financial and monetary market 
in Kuwait within limits of Law and as per CBK’s instructions and procedures through offering new trading 
financial instruments or providing consulting services to Kuwait Stock Exchange’s management and other 
services. 

- Executing the activities of investment controller. 

The Parent Company may have an interest or participate in any way in any entity that conducts similar business 
or which may assist it to achieve its objectives inside and outside Kuwait and it may also purchase such entities 
or affiliate thereof to it. 

The Parent Company’s registered office is at Al Qibla Tower, Fahed Al Salem Street, P.O Box 1346, Kuwait. 

On 5th May 2021, the General Assembly for Shareholders of the Parent Company approved the Financial 
Statement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and also approved the Board of Director’s recommendation 
not to distribute dividends. 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 were authorized for issue by the 
Parent Company’s Board of Directors on 21st March 2021. The General Assembly for the shareholders has the 
authority to amend the consolidated financial statements after issuance. 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statement of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries, which are fully owned and mentioned below together referred to as “the Group”. 
Name Country of Incorporation Principal Activities 
Strategia Investors Inc. United States Investment manager and advisor 
Strategia Investors Service Limited  Antigua and Burmuda Investment manager and advisor to 

a real estate fund 
Strategia Private Equity Limited  Cayman Islands Investment 
For the purposes of consolidation, it had been relied on the audit financial statements of the Strategia Investors 
Inc. and the management accounts for other subsidiaries. The total assets of these subsidiaries amounted to 
KD 1,401,441 as at 31 December 2021 (KD 1,617,859 - 31 December 2020), and net profit amounted to 
KD 831 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (KD 16,190 for the year ended 31 December 2020). 
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the regulations for financial 
services institutions as issued by the Central Bank of Kuwait (“CBK”) and the Capital market Authority “CMA” 
in the State of Kuwait. These regulations require expected credit loss (“ECL”) to be measured at the higher of 
the ECL on credit facilities computed under IFRS 9 according to the CBK guidelines or the provisions as required 
by CBK instructions; the consequent impact on related disclosures; and the adoption of all other requirements 
of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (“IASB”). (Collectively referred to as IFRS, as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait). 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for 
measurement of financial assets at fair value. 

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

2.2.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with 
those used in the previous year except for the adoption of certain standards and amendments, which are 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 :  

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 
“phase two” amendments to IFRS 9, 
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4, and IFRS 16  

The amendments enable entities to reflect the effects of transitioning 
from benchmark interest rates, such as interbank offer rates (IBORs) to 
alternative benchmark interest rates without giving rise to accounting 
impacts that would not provide useful information to users of financial 
statements. 
The amendments affect many entities and in particular those with 
financial assets, financial liabilities or lease liabilities that are subject to 
interest rate benchmark reform and those that apply the hedge 
accounting requirements in IFRS 9 or IAS 39 to hedging relationships 
that are affected by the reform. 

- The amendments apply to all entities and are not optional. 
- The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2021 with early application permitted. 

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 
beyond 30 June 2021 [IFRS 16] 

In May 2020 The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 
amends IFRS 16, which relieves a lessee from assessing whether a 
COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification, that applies 
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021.  In March 
2021, IASB extended the availability of the practical expedient to rent 
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects 
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other 
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. This is the only 
change made to the practical expedient. 

- The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 April 2021. Earlier application is permitted.  

2.2.2 IFRSs issued but not yet mandatorily effective 
At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the group has not applied the 
following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective: 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts The amendments defer the date of initial application of IFRS 17 
(incorporating the amendments) to annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2023. 

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current  
The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application permitted. 

Amendments to IFRS 3 

Reference to the Conceptual 
Framework 

The amendments are effective for business combinations for which the 
date of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period 
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.  

Early application is permitted if an entity also applies all other updated 
references (published together with the updated Conceptual 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated) 

Framework) at the same or ealier.

2.

2.1

Basis of preparation and Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated) 

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, 
Plant and Equipment—Proceeds 
before Intended Use 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2022, with early application Permitted. 

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous 
Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a 
Contract 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2022, with early application permitted. 

Annual Improvements to IFRS 
Standards 2018-2020 Cycle 

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 16 Leases, and 
IAS 41 Agriculture 

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2022, with early application permitted. 

Amendments to IFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 The 
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2023 

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS 
Practice Statement 2 

Disclosure of accounting policies 

the amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2023 

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates 

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2023 

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the 
Company’s financial statements for the period of initial application and adoption of these new standards, 
interpretations and amendments may have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in 
the period of initial application. 

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies 

2.3.1 Basis of Consolidation 
Subsidiaries 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and entities 
controlled by the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company (a) has power 
over the investee (b) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 
(c) has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.  

The Group reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three components of controls listed above. 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 
Group losses control over subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiary acquired or disposed of 
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of income or other comprehensive income from 
the date the Group gains control until the date when Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent 
Company and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the 
owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling 
interests having a deficit balance. 

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting 
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. 

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over 
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and 
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. 
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of 
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Parent 
Company. 

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as 
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of 
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any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of 
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.  

All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted 
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary. 

The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded 
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable, the cost on 
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture. 

Business combinations 
Acquisitions of businesses combination are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration 
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the 
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the 
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the 
acquiree.  Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair 
value at the acquisition date, except deferred tax assets or liabilities, liabilities or equity instruments related 
to share based payment arrangements and assets that are classified as held for sale in which cases they are 
accounted for in accordance with the related IFRS. 

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the 
acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities 
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), 
the excess is recognised immediately in consolidated statement of income as a bargain purchase gain.  

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' 
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of 
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.  

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree 
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (the date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting 
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the 
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit 
or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed off. 

Investments in associates and joint ventures 
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over 
those policies. 

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.  Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control 
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent 
of the parties sharing control. 

The considerations taken in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to 
determine control over subsidiaries. The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted 
for using the equity method. 

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost.  The 
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted in order to recognise the changes in the Group’s share of net 
assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. 

Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the investment’s carrying amount and is 
neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment. The consolidated statement of income reflects the 
Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those 
investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised 
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when 
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from 
transactions between the Group and its associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest 
in the associate or joint venture. 
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The aggregate of the Group’s share of results of an associate and a joint venture is shown on top of the 
consolidated statement of income off the operating profit and also represents the profit or loss after deducting 
tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture. The financial statements 
of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, 
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. 

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
impairment loss on its investment in the associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group 
determines whether there is an objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is 
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between 
the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as 
‘Impairment of an associate or a joint venture’ in the consolidated statement of income. 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any 
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint 
venture, upon loss of significant influence or joint control, and the fair value of the retained investment and 
proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 

2.3.2 Financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through consolidated statement of income) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through consolidated 
statement of income are recognised immediately in consolidated statement of income.   

Financial assets 
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. 
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.  

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair 
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.  

Classification of financial assets 

Classification and measurement of financial assets 
The Group classifies its financial assets as follows 

 Financial assets at amortised cost

 Financial assets fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

 Financial assets fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and 
its contractual cash flow characteristics.  

Business model assessment 
The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial 
assets to achieve its business objective. The Group's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-
instrument basis but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on a number of observable factors. 
The information considered includes: 

 The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.

 The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

 The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations
about future sales activity.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 
'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different 
from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining financial 

assets held in that business model but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or 
newly purchased financial assets going forward. 



Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and profit (SPPP test) 
The Group assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPPP test. 
‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and 
may change over the life of the financial asset. Profit is defined as consideration for time value of money and 
for the credit risk associated with the principal and for other basic lending risks and costs as well as a profit 
margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and profit, the Group 
considers whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of 
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. The Group considers: 

 Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

 Leverage features;

 Prepayment and extension terms;

 Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

 Features that modify consideration of the time value of money – e.g. periodical reset of profit rates.

Contractual terms that introduce a more than minimize exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash 
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are 
solely payment of principal and profit. In such cases, the financial asset is measured at fair value through profit 
or loss. 

Amortized cost and effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of 
allocating interest income over the relevant periods. 

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid 
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For 
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated 
by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of the 
debt instrument on initial recognition. 

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest 
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss 
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial 
asset before adjusting for any loss allowance. 

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently 
at amortized cost and at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired 
financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For 
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the 
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of 
the financial asset. 

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Company recognizes interest income by 
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial 
recognition. 

The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset subsequently 
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit impaired. 

Interest income is recognized in statement of income. 
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Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured 
at FVTPL. Specifically: 

 Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

 Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value 
gains or losses recognized in the statement of income to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging 
relationship. 

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI 

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to 
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity 
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business 
combination to which IFRS 3 applies.  

A financial asset is held for trading if: 

 It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

 On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

Investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction 
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value 
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment’s revaluation reserve. The 
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to statement of income on disposal of these investments, 
instead, they will be transferred to retained earnings.  

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at FVTOCI on 
initial application of IFRS 9.  

Foreign exchange gains and losses 

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that 
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:
For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive 
income in the investment’s revaluation reserve.  

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group applies the general approach to the creation of provisions against expected credit losses in 
accordance with IFRS 9 related to the financial instruments within cash and cash equivalents. The Group uses 
credit rating by external rating agencies to assess the credit risk exposure to these financial assets. These 
ratings are continuously monitored and updated. 

Credit facilities - (Finance Receivables) 

The CBK regulations require expected credit loss (“ECL”) to be measured at the higher of the ECL on credit 
facilities computed under IFRS 9 according to the CBK guidelines or the provisions as required by CBK 
instructions 

Provisions for credit losses in accordance with CBK instructions 

accordance with Central Bank of Kuwait instructions, a minimum general provision of 1% of all receivables net 
of certain restricted categories of collateral and not subject to specific provision. The specific provisions are 
recorded based on the duration of the past due of the Credit Facility as below, net of eligible collaterals: 
Category Criteria Specific provisions 
Substandard Irregular for a period of 91- 180 days 20% 
Doubtful Irregular for a period of 181- 365 days 50% 
Bad Irregular for a period exceeding 365 days 100% 
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The ECL provision is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the Lifetime Expected 
Credit Loss or LT ECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which 
case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ Expected Credit Loss (12m ECL). 

The 12m ECL is the portion of LT ECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a Credit 
Facilities that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 

Both LT ECLs and 12m ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the 
nature of the underlying portfolio of Credit Facilities.  

The Group has established policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a 
Credit Facilities’ credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the 
risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the Credit Facility.  

The Group classifies its Credit Facilities into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below: 

Stage 1: 12-month ECL 

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to 12-month ECL on financial assets where there has 
not been significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition or on exposures that are determined 
to have a low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk 
when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally recognised definition of ‘investment grade’. 

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL – not credit impaired 

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL on financial assets where there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired. 

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL – credit impaired 

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to 100% of net exposure i.e. after deduction from 
the amount of exposure value of collaterals determined in accordance with CBK guideline.  

Significant increase in credit risk 
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life from the 
reporting date with the risk of default at the date of initial recognition. The quantitative criteria used to 
determine a significant increase in credit risk is a series of relative and absolute thresholds. All financial assets 
that are more than 30 days past due are deemed to have significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition and migrated to stage 2 even if other criteria do not indicate a significant increase in credit risk. 

Credit Impaired 
At each reporting date, the Group also assesses whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is credit 
impaired. The Group considers a financial asset to be impaired when one or more events that have a 
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred or when contractual 
payments are more than 90 days past due.  All credit impaired financial assets are classified as stage 3 for ECL 
measurement purposes. Evidence of credit impairment includes observable data about the following: 

 Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer

 A breach of contract such as default or past due event

 The lender having granted to the borrower a concession, that the lender would otherwise not consider, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty

 The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties

 Purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit loss

At the reporting date, if the credit risk of a financial asset or group of financial assets has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition or not credit impaired, these financial assets are classified as stage 1. 

Calculation of ECL 

The Group calculates ECL based on highest probable scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls, 
discounted at an approximation to the Effective Profit Rate. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash 
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to 
receive. 
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The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 

 The Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the financial asset has not been
previously derecognized and is still in the portfolio. The Group uses point in time PD (PITPD) for each rating
to calculate the ECL. The minimum PD is 1% for Non-Investment Grade facilities and 0.75% for Investment
Grade financing facilities except for financing facilities granted to Government and banks rated as
Investment Grade by an external rating agency and financing transactions related to consumer and housing
financing.

 The Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and profit,
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities. As per CBK
requirements, the Group applies 100% Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) on utilized cash.

 The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
financier would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as
a percentage of the EAD.

Other than the above LGD estimation mechanics, the Group also complies with the guidelines mentioned in 
the CBK Instruction, as follows: 

 The Group applies minimum 50% LGD on unsecured Credit Facility and minimum 75% LGD for unsecured
subordinated financing receivable.

 The Group applies a minimum haircut to the collateral values as per CBK instructions.

As per Central Bank of Kuwait’s (CBK) instructions, the Group measures loss provisions at an amount equal
to 100% of net exposure i.e. after deduction from the amount of exposure to identified collaterals
including 100% of loss given default of irregular payment (non-performing) cases as per CBK’s instructions
concerning rules and bases of classifying the credit facilities, investment and funding operations
mentioned above as of the date of meeting the conditions of irregularity and/or based on the customer’s
financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets 

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the 
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial 
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.  

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement of income.  

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by an entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs. 

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain 
or loss is recognised in statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own 
equity instruments. 

Financial liabilities 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at 
FVTPL. 
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Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-
for trading, or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of 
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral 
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected 
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses 

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the 
end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised 
cost of the instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses’ 
line item in statement of income for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised 
and the consideration paid and payable, is recognized in statement of income. 

2.3.3 Investment properties 
Investment properties held by the Group are the properties held for capital appreciation or to earn rental 
income. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investments properties are carried out at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.  

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on the building is calculated using the straight-line method to 
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful life of 39 years. 

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income in the year of derecognition. 

2.3.4 Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Cost 
includes the purchase price and directly associated costs of bringing the asset to a working condition for its 
intended use. Maintenance and repairs, replacements and improvements of minor importance are expensed 
as incurred. In situations, where it is clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in 
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment 
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalized. 

Depreciation is calculated based on estimated useful life of the applicable assets. An asset’s carrying amount 
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its 
estimated recoverable amount. 

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

2.3.5 Impairment of non-monetary assets 
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. 

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent 
of the impairment loss (if any). 

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use.  Impairment 
losses are recognized in the statement of income for the period in which they arise. When an impairment loss 
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the extent that it does not exceed the 
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2.3.6 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount 
has been reliably estimated.  Provisions are measured at the present value of the consideration expected to 
be required to settle the obligation using a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the obligation. 

2.3.7 End of service indemnity 
The Group is liable under Kuwait Labour Law to make payments under defined benefit plans to employees at 
termination of employment, regarding the labour in other countries; the indemnity is calculated based on law 
identified in these countries. Such payment is made on a lump sum basis at the end of an employee service. 
Defined benefit plan is un-funded and is based on the liability that would arise on involuntary termination of 
all employees on the financial position date. This basis is considered to be a reliable approximation of the 
present value of the Group’s liability.  

2.3.8 Revenue recognition 
Gain on sale of investments is recognized at the completion of the transaction. Dividend income is recognized 
when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis 
based on the maturity dates of the related assets by using the effective yield method. Management and 
subscription fees are recognized when the services are provided. 

2.3.9 Leases 

The Group as a lessee 
The Group assesses whether contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the Contract. The Group recognizes 
a right of use asset and a corresponding lease liability on the date on which the lessor makes the asset available 
for use by the Group (the commencement date).   

On that date, the Group measures the right of use at cost, which comprises of: 

 the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability.

 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received

 any initial direct costs, and

 an estimate of costs to be incurred to restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease as a consequence of having used the underlying asset during a particular
period; this is recognised as part of the cost of the right of use asset when the Group incurs the obligation
for those costs, which may be at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used the asset
during a particular period.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments 
that are not paid at that date. On that date, the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses 
its incremental borrowing rate.  

Lease payments included in measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments for the right 
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date:  

 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

 variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate

 amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees

 the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Payments associated with leases of short-term leases and low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line 
basis as an expense in statement of income. 

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on 
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the 
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-
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Subsequent Measurement 

After the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
asset's useful life and the lease term. The Group determines whether a right of use asset is impaired and 
recognizes any impairment loss identified in the statement of income. The depreciation starts at the 
commencement date of the lease. 

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for an 
identified impairment loss. 

After the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made.  

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use 
asset) whenever:  

 The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

 The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a
floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

 A lease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and the finance cost. The finance cost is charged to 
statement income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability for each period. The constant periodic rate of interest is the discount rate used at the 
initial measurement of lease liability. 

For a contract that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the 
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

Sale and leaseback 

The Group enters into sale and leaseback transactions whereby it sells certain assets to a third-party and 
immediately leases them back. Where sale proceeds received are judged to reflect the fair value, any gain or 
loss arising on disposal is recognised in the statement of income, to the extent that it relates to the rights that 
have been transferred. Gains and losses that relate to the rights that have been retained are included in the 
carrying amount of the right of use asset recognised at commencement of the lease. Where sale proceeds 
received are not at the fair value, any below market terms are recognised as a prepayment of lease payments, 
and above market terms are recognised as additional financing provided by the lessor. 

Where the Group is the lessor 

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a 
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount 
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to allocate 
consideration under the contract to each component. 

2.3.10 Foreign currencies 
Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in ‘Kuwaiti Dinars’ (KD), which is the Parent Company’s functional and the 
Group’s presentation currency. 
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Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars using the exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses are resulted 
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end in the statement of income. 

Group companies 

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the 
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows (other than companies which 
are operating in high inflation countries): 

 Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that financial position.

 Income and expenses for each statement of income are translated at average exchange rates.

 All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of other comprehensive income
items.

2.3.11 Dividends 
Dividend distribution to the Parent Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the consolidated 
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Parent Company’s shareholders. 

2.3.12 Fiduciary assets 
Assets which are kept by the Group as an agency or under a fiduciary capacity are not considered as Group's 
assets. 

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group continuously reviews its risk exposures and takes measures to limit it to acceptable levels. The Board of
Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management
framework and developing and monitoring the risk management policies.

(a) Market risk

Foreign currency risks

The Group is exposed to the risk of foreign currency resulting primarily from dealing in financial instruments
with US Dollar. The risk of foreign exchange is resulting from future transactions on financial instruments in
foreign currency recorded in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The Group has set policies for managing foreign exchange risk through careful monitoring of changes in
currency rates and its respective impact on the financial position of the Group, during the year. Also the Group
is dealing with financial institutions with high experience in this field to provide the Group with necessary
advisory in case of any significant change in foreign currencies’ rates.

In case of a change in the US Dollar against the Kuwaiti Dinar by 5% as at 31 December, the Group’s profit
would have changed by KD 9,004 and equity would have changed by KD 29,494 (profit KD 76,899 and equity
KD 71,282 - 2020).

Following is the net position of the foreign currencies as at 31 December:
2021 2020 

US$ Surplus 1,401,441 1,617,859

Price risk

Price risk is the risk arising from fluctuation of financial instrument value resulting from changes in market
price. For managing this risk, the Group is monitoring market prices of these investments, and performing a
periodic evaluation of the financial statements of the investees and determining its fair values through
financial data available for these investments.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact of the change in the index of the stock market on the
Group’s equity. This analysis is based on the index change by 5% with all other variables held constant.
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2021 2020 
Kuwait Stock Exchange 29,494 29,567

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bonds. The bonds placed at variable rates expose the Company to 
cash flow interest rate risk.  

The Group manages interest rate risk by diversification of interest rates between fixed and variable and 
borrowing funds at market linked floating interest rates and placing time deposits at the best available rates. 

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates at that date had been 0.25% higher/lower with all other variables held 
constant, loss for the year would have been lower/higher by KD 2,859 (KD 529 - 2020). 

The Group is managing this risk by locking the deposits for a short-term period relatively. The Group is 
periodically studying the factors related to interest rates to assess the possibility of an increase or decrease in 
interest rates for future periods, and the related impacts on the Group's cash flows and profits in addition to 
take the necessary action in order to mitigate such impact. 

(b) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties failed to 
discharge their contractual obligations. 

Credit risk is managed by the Group by monitoring credit policy on regular basis taking into account to maintain 
non-concentration of credit risk. 

Credit risk is highly concentrated in cash and cash equivalents, bonds, receivables and finance receivables. The 
Group keeps its cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions with high credit reputation and invests in 
bonds which have been issued from financial companies and institutions with high credit reputation. The 
Group grants credit only within the limits of the requirements and the normal course of business taking into 
consideration its financial position, past experience and reputation. 

Maximum exposure to credit risk 

An analysis of the Groups financial assets before taking into account other credit enhancements is as follows: 
2021 2020 

Cash at banks  640,044 2,126,869
Receivables  255,198 264,457
Finance receivables 4,145,711 4,186,548
Investments at amortized cost 648,628 1,743,113

5,689,581 8,320,987

Note 10 shows aging analysis of finance receivables and movement of provision. 

Credit risk measurement 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the 
other party to incur a financial loss. One of the main activities of the group that generates revenue is lending 
to customers. Credit risk is therefore a principal risk. Credit risk arises mainly from financing receivables. 
The Group considers all elements of credit risk exposure, such as default risk, geographic risk and sector risk 
for risk management purposes.  

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy 
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral values which is amounted to KD 9,568,169 against the finance 
receivable as of 31 December 2021 providing coverage percentage of 204%, as a mean of mitigating the risk 
of financial loss from defaults. The group only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of 
investment grade. Investment at amortised cost as detailed in note 7, where the counterparties have a 
minimum BBB credit rating, are considered to have low credit risk for the purpose of impairment assessment. 
The credit rating information is supplied by independent rating agencies where available and, if not available, 
the Group uses other publicly available financial information. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of 
its counterparties are continuously monitored as well as the aggregate value of transactions. 

The finance receivable balances as at the end of the year of KD 4,145,711 (2020: KD 4,186,548) is due from 
NIG, the group’s related party with a good credit rating. Apart from that the group does not have other 
exposures.  
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Also, the Group manages the credit risk by setting credit policies focus on careful assessment of 
creditworthiness of borrowers, in addition to the identification of the necessary guarantees received from the 
customers as well as setting a credit approval limit. 

The Group utilizes collaterals in reducing balances that are exposed to credit risk to an acceptable level. The 
credit policy identifies the type of collateral required for each type of transaction. The bases for assessment of 
those collaterals and the frequency of such assessment are also determined.  

The Group measures the credit risks in terms of the asset’s credit quality using two main methods, namely 
provisions proportion and non-performing finance receivables proportion. The non-performing finance 
receivables proportion is the ratio of non-performing finance receivables to the total finance receivables. 

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprise the following categories: 
Category Description Basis for recognising 

expected credit losses 

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 
have any past-due amounts. 

12- Months ECL 

Doubtful Amount is >30 days past due or there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

Lifetime ECL – not credit impaired 

In default Amount is >90 days past due or there is evidence 
indicating the asset is credit-impaired 

Lifetime ECL – credit-impaired 

Write – off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe 
financial difficulty and the Group have no realistic 
prospect of recovery 

Amount is written off 

However, the ECL provision on these balances are not material to the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements. The credit risk for bank balances and trade receivable is considered negligible, since the 
counterparties are reputable financial institution with high credit quality and no history of default, as well as 
the trade receivable is a minor amount, which majorly comprise of staff receivable. Based on the management 
assessment, the expected credit loss impact arising from such financial assets are insignificant to the Group as 
the risk of default has not increased significantly. 

Moreover, as per the CBK guidance, the company is supposed to report the higher of ECL or provision as per 
CBK regulations (note 2.3.2).  

Assessment of expected credit losses 

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL 
calculations when: 

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held);

the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Group: or

borrower is considered as credit impaired based on qualitative assessment for internal credit risk
management purposes.

Any credit impaired or stressed facility that has been restructured would also be considered as in default. 

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets, as well as the Group’s maximum 

exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades: 

The Group do not hold any financial guarantee contracts as of 31 December 2021 

31 Dec 2021 Note External 
Credit 
Rating 

Internal 
Credit 
Rating 

12-month 
or lifetime 
ECL 

Stage Gross 
Carrying 
amount 

Loss 
allowance 

CBK 
Provision 

Net 
carrying 
amount 

Finance 
receivable 

10 BBB BBB 12 Month 
ECL 

1 4,198,450 Nil 52,739 4,145,711 

Investment held 
to maturity 

7 A2-Baa3 A2-Baa3 12 Month 
ECL 

1 650,000 2,502 - 647,498 
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The quantitative criteria used to determine a significant increase in credit risk is a series of relative and absolute 
thresholds. All financial assets that are 30 days past due are deemed to have significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition and migrated to stage 2 even if other criteria’s do not indicate a significant increase in 
credit risk.  

The potential for default is that the obligor may fail to meet its obligations in the future. IFRS 9 requires the 
use of probability of default separately for a period of 12 months or over the life of the instruments based on 
the stage distribution for the obligor. The probability of default used in IFRS 9 should reflect the Group's 
estimate of the quality of the asset in the future. 

The calculation is based on statistical models. These statistical models are based on market data (where 
available), as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. PDs are estimated 
considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates. The estimation is based 
on current conditions, adjusted to take into account estimates of future conditions that will impact PD. 

Exposure at default 
Exposure at default (“EAD”) represents the amount which the obligor will owe to the Group at the time of 
default. The Group considers variable exposures that may increase the EAD in addition to the drawn credit 
line. These exposures arise from undrawn limits and contingent liabilities. Therefore, the exposure will contain 
both on and off-balance sheet values. EAD is estimated taking into consideration the contractual terms such 
as rates, frequency, reference curves, maturity, pre-payment options, amortization schedule, usage given 
default, etc. 

Loss given default 
Loss given default (“LGD”) is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD 
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models 
consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any 
collateral that is integral to the financial asset. For all unsecured credit facilities, the Group considers a 
minimum of 50% LGD for senior debt and 75% LGD for subordinated debt.  

Incorporation of forward-looking information 
The Group considers key economic variables that are expected to have an impact on the credit risk and the 
ECL in order to incorporate forward looking information into the ECL models. These primarily reflect 
reasonable and supportable forecasts of the future macro-economic conditions. The consideration of such 
factors increases the degree of judgment in determination of ECL. The Group employs statistical models to 
incorporate macro-economic factors on historical default rates. The Group considers 3 scenarios (baseline, 
upside and downside) of forecasts of macro-economic data separately for each geographical segments and 
appropriate probability weights are applied to these scenarios to derive a probability weighted outcome of 
expected credit loss. The management reviews the methodologies and assumptions including any forecasts of 
future economic conditions on a regular basis. 

(c) Liquidity risk 
The liquidity risk is the risk that the Group becomes unable to settle its liabilities when due. 

The management of liquidity risk is mainly to maintain sufficient balance of cash, highly liquid financial 
instruments and financial resources are made available to meet the needs of liquidity. 

The Group monitors liquidity risk by maintaining Group of highly liquid financial investments. This facilitates the 
Group, the availability of liquidity when needed. In addition, the Group studies the extent of liquidity in these 
investments on a regular basis and adjusts the components of these assets when this is necessary. 

All outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 mature within one year from the consolidated 
financial statements date. 

3.2 Capital risk management 
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns 
while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the equity balance.  
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The capital structure of the Group consists of equity of the Group comprising issued capital, reserves and retained 
earnings. The Parent Company’s current strategy is to rely on the self-finance for the Group’s activities instead of 
depending on debts, and to maintain the external finance at minimum. 

3.3 Fair value estimation 
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows: 

− Level one:  Quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

− Level two:  Quoted prices in an active market for similar instruments. Quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in market that are not active. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for 
assets and liabilities. 

− Level three: Inputs for the asset or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

The table below gives information about how the fair values of the financial assets are determined: 

Financial assets Fair value as at 
Fair value 
hierarchy 

Valuation 
technique(s) 

and Key 
input(s) 

Significant 
unobservable 

input(s) 

Relationship of 
unobservable inputs 

to fair value 
31/12/21 31/12/20 

Equity instruments designated as FVTPL
Quoted Shares 4,288,133 2,450,686 1 Last bid price - - 
Unquoted Shares 2,876,071 - 2 Market 

Multiple 
Discount 
rate, etc. 

The higher market 
risk the lower the 
fair value 

Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI - - 

Quoted Shares 3,090,145 2,718,043 1 Last bid price - - 
Unquoted shares 887,861 1,120,217 3 Adjusted Net 

book value 
Book value 
adjusted with 
market risk 

The higher market 
risk the lower the 
fair value 

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
approximately equals their carrying values as at the consolidated financial statements date. 

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgments
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the management are required to make judgments and
estimates about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects future periods.

During the year, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has brough disruptions in business operations of the
Company and the economies in which the Company operates. Consistent with its risk management framework,
the management has followed prudent steps in minimizing the impact on key risk parameters. Refer note 20
for details.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the assets recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of investments in equity instruments

On acquisition of an investment, the Group decides whether it should be classified as "FVTPL” or "FVTOCI".
The Group follows the guidance of IFRS 9 on classifying its investments.

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as these investments are strategic
investments and are not held for trading.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.  

Fair value measurements and valuation techniques 

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair value for the purposes of preparing the financial 
statements. The Group’s management determines the main appropriate techniques and inputs required for 
measuring the fair value. In determining the fair value of assets and liabilities, management uses observable 
market data as appropriate, in case no observable market data is available the Group uses an external valuer 
qualified to do the valuation.  Information regarding the required valuation techniques and inputs used to 
determine the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is disclosed in notes (3.3 and 6). 

Impairment ECL of financial assets   

The Group estimates ECL for all financial assets carried at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income except for equity instruments. 

Significant judgements are required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as: 

 Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

 Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for measurement of ECL;

 Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

 Establishing group of similar financial assets for the purpose of measuring ECL.

Probability of default: PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default 
over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of 
future conditions.  

Loss Given Default: LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows 
from collateral and integral credit enhancements. 

Impairment of associates 

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any 
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associated companies, at each statement of financial position 
date based on existence of any objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If this is the 
case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of 
the associate and it is carrying value and recognises the impairment loss in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss. 

Any changes in these estimates and assumptions as well as the use of different, but equally reasonable 
estimates and assumptions may have an impact on the carrying value of the above assets (Note 8). 

5. Cash and cash equivalents
2021 2020 

Cash at banks 638,820 2,125,009
Cash on hand 787 1,422
Cash in investment portfolios 437 438

640,044 2,126,869

6. Financial Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
2021 2020 

Quoted shares  4,288,133 2,450,686
Unquoted shares 2,876,071 -

7,164,204 ,6862,450

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2021   64

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated) 

Sources of estimation uncertainty 



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated) 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
2021 2020 

Quoted shares  3,090,145 2,718,043
Unquoted shares  887,861 1,120,217

3,978,006 3,838,260

The fair value has been determined based on valuation basis mentioned in note (3.3). 

The Group has pledged quoted securities with carrying amount of KD 5,358,150 as of 31 December 2021 (KD 
3,031,922 – 31 December 2020) against the credit facilities (Note 12).  

7. Investments at amortized cost
The effective interest rates on these bonds is 4.25% per annum (4.2% - 2020). The bonds have maturity dates
ranging between 3 to 6 years from the end of the reporting period. The balance includes an amount of KD
298,822 represented in bonds which have been issued by related parties (Note 16).

8. Investment in an Associate

8.1 Investment in an Associate
Company’s name Country of 

Incorporation 
Principal Activities Proportion of ownership 

interest (%) 
2021 2020 

Kuwait Financial Centre Kuwait 
Investment management and 

financial advisory 29.86 .8629

The Group’s share in the associate’s result and reserves are calculated using equity method based on the audited 
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. Summarized financial information of the associate 
as at 31 December is as follows: 

2021 2020 
Total assets  210,769,031 192,164,000
Total liabilities  100,730,971 100,147,000
Non-controlling interest 31,229,000 34,568,000
Revenues 30,642,000 13,161,000
Profits for the year 14,988,000 (1,715,000)
Total other comprehensive income (905,000) 149,000
Dividend received from the associate during the year - 690,761

Movement on investments balance in the associate during the year are as follows: 
2021 2020 

Balance as at 1 January 19,559,996 23,972,825
Additions during the year - 388,079
Cash dividends  - (690,761)
Group’s share in associate’s results 4,474,873 (450,872)
Group’s share in associate’s reserves  (270,200) 38,858
Impairment on associate - (3,693,582)
Effect of change in ownership percentage of subsidiaries of associate (234,672) (4,551)

23,529,997 19,559,996

The fair value of investment in an associate amounted to KD 25,556,491 (KD 11,493,282 – 2020) based on 
quoted price on Kuwait stock exchange which is Level 1 as at the consolidated financial position date. 

An assessment is made at each consolidated statement of financial position date to determine whether there 
is objective evidence that an associate may be impaired or there is any indication that impairment loss 
recognized in prior periods may no longer exist or may have decrease. Kuwait financial centre (Markaz) is 
engaged in the business of financial services under a license from the CMA.  
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In order to assess the impairment in associate management have used multiple techniques relevant to the 
nature and operations of the associate to determine the fair value less cost to sell in addition to the discounted 
cash flows method to determine the value in use. 

Following are the key assumption used in determining the value in use calculation. 
Key assumption Basis used to determine value to be assigned to key assumption 
Growth rate 2.5% per annum, considering the pandemic effects on GDP 

(Gross Domestic Product) 
Discount rate Discount rates range from 10% to 20% per annum. Discount rates used are pre-tax and 

reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.  

The management has used the market approach and net asset value (NAV) approach to estimate the fair value 
of its investment in the associate using the past three years financial data with applying discount factors 
ranging from 10-20% to certain assets classes held by the associate while applying the NAV, these are mainly 
financial assets and investment properties.  

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis by varying these input factors by a reasonably possible margin 
and assessing whether the change in input factors result in the aggregate carrying amount.  

Based on the above analysis, the Group concluded that the recoverable amount is approximately equivalent 
to the carrying value as at 31 December 2021, (recoverable amount less than carrying value by KD 3,693,582 
as at 31 December 2020). 

The Group has pledged 98 Mio shares of its associate with fair value of KD 17,542,000 against the credit 
facilities (Note 12).  

9. Investment properties
The movement for the investment properties is as follows:

2021 2020 
Balance as at 1 January 3,302,581 3,631,880
Additions during the year 623,864 613,392
Depreciation during the year (29,388) (29,968)
Impairment loss recorded during the year (569,455) (912,723)

Closing as at 31 Dec  ,327,6023 3,302,581

The investment properties are located outside Kuwait and categorised as follow: 
2021 2020 

Land 2,408,985 2,352,139
Developed property 918,617 950,442

3,327,602 3,302,581

The fair value of investment properties amounted to KD 3,769,369 as at 31 December 2021 (KD 3,678,230 – 
2020) has been determined based on valuations prepared by independent valuers, the independent valuers 
are licensed from relevant regulating bodies, and are industry specialised in valuing such type of investment 
properties. 

During the year, the company have recorded impairment loss for its Land located in Sharjah of KD 569,455 (YE 
2020 KD 912,723).  

The rental income generated from the developed land is KD 82,042 (YE 2020 KD 81,190). 

The land is valued based on income approach, adopting discounted cashflow method (Level 3). 

The fair value of developed property was determined based on capitalization of net income method (Level 3), 
where the market rental of all rentable units of the properties are assessed by reference to the rental achieved 
and letting of similar properties in neighbourhood. 

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the property is its current use. 
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10. Finance receivables
Finance receivables are represented in commercial loans granted to related parties. The effective interest rate
on these finance receivables is 3.750%. The fair value of the collaterals held against certain finance receivables
is KD 9,568,169 as at 31 December 2021 (KD 8,415,240 – 31 December 2020). The following is an analysis of
outstanding balances and related provision.

2021 2020 
Gross balance of commercial loans 4,250,729 4,291,566
Less: deferred revenue 79)(52,2 (52,279)

4,198,450 4,239,287
Less: Provision for credit losses – CBK general provision (52,739) (52,739)

Balance as at 31 December  4,145,711 4,186,548

The balances of receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 do not include matured past due, 
or impaired balances, and the entire balance is under stage 1 for the purpose of the ECL measurement. 

The finance receivables (gross) amounted to KD 4,250,729 as at 31 December 2021 mature within one year. 

The general provision for credit losses is calculated in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of 
Kuwait.  

The movements on the general provision for credit losses is as follows: 
2021 2020 

Balance at 1 January  52,739 66,167
Reversal - (13,428)

Balance at 31 December 2021 52,739 52,739

The ECL for finance receivables to customers as at 31 December 2021 is Nil  Which is lower than the provision 
for impairment of finance receivables to customers required by CBK. 

11. Payables and other credit balances
2021 2020 

Accrued expenses 4,00510 61,183
Staff leave and other benefits 336,833 585,345
Others 226,866 58,870

1,164,207 705,398

12. Bank facilities:
2021 2020 

Bank facilities 8,150,000 5,610,000

The average interest rate on the credit facilities is 4% and the maturity date is 1 October 2022. The following
assets are pledged against bank facilities as at 31 December 2021:

- 98,000,000 shares of investments in associate (Note 8). 

- 11,025,001 shares of quoted investments (Note 6). 

13. Share capital and reserves

13.1 Share capital  
As at 31 December 2021, the authorized issued and paid-up share capital is KD 30 million distributed over 300 
million shares with a nominal value of 100 fils each (30 million distributed over 300 million shares with a 
nominal value of 100 fils each - 2020), and all shares are in cash. 

On 4 February 2018, the extraordinary General Assembly decided to increase the issued and fully paid-up 
capital from KD 30 million to authorized amount of KD 50 million and gave the authority to the BOD to decide 
the amount, time of the issuance and the share premium (If any). 

Based on the above on 9 November 2021 the Board of Directors have decided to increase the issued and 
paid-up capital from KD 30 M to KD 39M at a nominal value of 100 Fils per share and no issuance premium. 
The necessary procedures are being completed and the approval of the regulatory authorities is being 
obtained. 
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In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of net profit 
before Board of Directors’ remuneration, National Labour Support Tax, Zakat expense and KFAS are transferred 
to statutory reserve.  When the balance of the reserve exceeds 50% of share capital, the General Assembly is 
permitted to discontinue this transfer. The reserve could be utilized to secure payment of a dividend of 5% of 
share capital in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for payment of dividends.  

13.3 Voluntary reserve 
In accordance with the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 1% of net profit before Board of Directors’ 
remuneration, National Labour Support Tax, Zakat expense and KFAS as proposed by the Board of Directors 
and approved by the General Assembly is transferred to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be 
discontinued by a resolution of the General Assembly based on the proposal of the Board of Directors. 

14. Treasury shares
2021 2020 

Number of shares 26,576 20,277
Percentage of issued shares (%) 0.008 0.007

The Parent Company is required to retain reserves and retained earnings equivalent to the cost of treasury
shares throughout the year, in which they are held by the Parent Company, in accordance with the instructions
of the relevant regulatory authorities. These shares are not pledged. During the year, the Group purchase
treasury shares amounting to KD 156.

15. Investment income

Investment income from financial assets at FVTPL
2021 2020 

Cash dividends 214,163 285,258
Gain on sale of joint venture - 883,967
Gain on reversal of provision - 3,869
Gain on change in fair value of investments through profit & loss 440,851 (423,183)
Realized gains 211,513 (373,394)

866,527 376,517

Investment income from financial assets at FVOCI 
2021 2020 

Cash dividends  26,633 239,55

Total Investment income 893,160 16,0694

16. Related party transactions
Related parties are the shareholders of Parent Company who are represented in Board of Directors as well as
major shareholders and the companies in which any of its members is at the same time a board member in
the Company’s Board of Directors and associated companies. In the ordinary course of business, the Group
has carried out some transactions during the year with related parties. Transactions and balances are included
in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2021 2020 
Transactions  
Remuneration of Key management personal 
Salaries and other short-term benefits 466,246 330,516
End of service indemnity 55,784 44,834
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Investments 
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL 2,540,731 -

Interest income – Shareholders 193,817 309,464

Balances 
Investments at amortized cost (Note 7)  
Associate 22298,8 298,822
Share holders - 597,666
Finance receivable (Note 10) – Shareholders 4,145,711 4,186,548
Payables and other credit balances  799,943 453,052

Finance receivable details are disclosed in note 10. 

Related parties’ transactions are subject to approval of shareholders’ general assembly. 

17. Dividends

On 5th May 2021, the General Assembly for Shareholders of the Parent Company approved the Financial
Statement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and also approved the Board of Director’s recommendation
not to distribute dividends.

On 21 March 2022, The Board of Directors of the Parent Company have proposed distribution of cash dividends
of 5 fils share for the year ended 31 December 2021.

18. Fiduciary Assets
The Group manages portfolios on behalf of customers and maintains cash balances and securities in fiduciary
accounts which are not reflected on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The aggregate net asset
value held in a fiduciary capacity by the Group is KD 24,039,067 as at 31 December 2021 (KD 21,770,501 as at
31 December 2020).

19. Segment information
In the purpose of management, the Group organizes its operations in two main sectors of business. The
following are the main activities and services that are underlined in such two sectors.

Investment activities: Investing in securities, funds, properties lending to corporate and individual customers
and managing the Group’s liquidity requirements.
Asset management and advisory services: Discretionary and non-discretionary investment portfolio
management, managing of local and international investment funds and providing advisory and structured
finance services and other related financial services.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on the return on investments. The Group does not have any significant inter-segment transactions.

The following table presents segment revenues, profits, assets, and liabilities related to the Group’s business
segments:

2021 
Investment 

activities 
Asset management 

and advisory services 
Total 

Segment revenues 5,037,006 33,467 5,070,473
Net loss 3,488,430 33,467 521,8973,
Segment assets 43,676,671 110,963 43,787,634
Segment liabilities  3689,288, 83925, 9,314,207

2020 
Investment 

activities 
Asset management 

and advisory services 
Total 

Segment revenues (4,007,235) 36,499 (3,970,736)
Net profit (5,107,487) 36,499 (5,070,988)
Segment assets 37,555,078 76,079 37,631,157
Segment liabilities  6,289,086 26,312 6,315,398
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2021 
Middle East USA Europe Total 

Segment revenues 4,949,895 120,578 5,070,473
Net Profit 3,497,634 34,936 (10,673) 3,521,897
Assets  42,362,568 1,423,024 2,042 43,787,634
Liabilities 3689,288, 83925, 9,314,207

2020 
Middle East USA Europe Total 

Segment revenues (5,052,642) 125,397 956,508 (3,970,736)
Net profits (6,061,438) 44,859 945,591 (5,070,988)
Assets  36,201,249 1,427,861 2,047 37,631,157
Liabilities 6,289,085 326,31 - 86,315,39

20. Impact of COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic continues to spread across global geographies causing disruption to business and
economic activities and bringing significant uncertainties to the global economic environment. Fiscal and
monetary authorities worldwide launched extensive responses designed to mitigate the severe consequences
of the pandemic. With improved vaccination, business sentiments have significantly improved during the year,
though the uncertainties continue.

The Group has performed an assessment of COVID-19 implications on the financial results of the Group and
incorporated the outcome in these consolidated financial statements and explained the changes in light of the
available guidance of IFRS related to critical judgments and estimates for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Valuation estimates and judgements 
The Group has considered potential impacts of the current market volatility in determination of the reported 
amounts of the Group’s unquoted financial assets and investment in associate, this represents management's 
best assessment based on observable available information as at the reporting date. Given the impact of 
COVID-19, the Group is closely monitoring whether the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities 
represent the price that would be achieved for transactions between market participants in the current 
scenario. Further information on the Group’s policy in relation to fair value measurements is disclosed in Note 
2.3.2. 

Impairment of Investment properties 
The Group has considered any impairment indicators arising and any significant uncertainties around its 
investment’s properties and concluded that the impairment losses booked during the year for the investment 
property of KD 569,455 represent the best estimate of the pandemic impact and the assets values reported as 
of 31 December 2021 represent the best recoverable amounts that would be achieved for transactions 
between market participants in the current scenario. 

Markets however remain volatile, and the recorded amounts remain sensitive to market fluctuations. Based 
on the external third-party expert and management expert, the Group’s management believes that recorded 
amounts represent the best estimate in light of the available information. 

Going concern 
The Group has performed as assessment of whether it is a going concern in the light of current economic 
conditions and all available information about future risks and uncertainties. The projections have been 
prepared covering the Group’s future performance, capital and liquidity. The impact of COVID-19 may continue 
to evolve, but at the present time the projections show that Group has ample resources to continue in 
operational existence and its going concern position remains largely unaffected and unchanged. As a result, 
these consolidated financial statements have been appropriately prepared on a going concern basis. 
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Geographical distribution of Group’s revenues, profits, assets and liabilities is set out below: 
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